
 

 
 
 
 
 

Board Meeting Agenda 
 
 

Russ Baggerly, Director 
Mary Bergen, Director 
Bill Hicks, Director 

Pete Kaiser, Director 
James Word, Director 

 
CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

August 13, 2014 
3:00 P.M. – DISTRICT OFFICE 

 
Right to be heard:  Members of the public have a right to address the Board directly on any 
item of interest to the public which is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board.  The 
request to be heard should be made immediately before the Board's consideration of the item. 
No action shall be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is 
otherwise authorized by subdivision (b) of  ¶54954.2 of the Government Code and except that 
members of a legislative body or its staff may briefly respond to statements made or questions 
posed by persons exercising their public testimony rights under section 54954.3 of the 
Government Code. 

 
 
1. Public Comments (items not on the agenda – three minute limit). 
     
2. General Manager comments.   
 
3. Board of Director comments. 

 
4. Consent Agenda 
 
 a. Minutes of July 23, 2014 Meeting. 
 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Consent Agenda 
 
5. Bills 
 
6. Presentation of the State Water Project Contract Extension Negotiation 

and Agreement in Principle. 
 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Direction to staff 
 
7. Resolution approving a contract between the United State of America and 

the District for the repayment of funds expended for the federally 
performed Safety of Dams Act Modification Program at the Casitas Dam 
and Reservoir. 

 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution 
 1 



8. Actions to Comply with the State Water Board’s Drought Emergency 
Regulations. 

 
a. Recommend rescinding Resolution No. 08-09 and Adopting the 

Ordinance Establishing Water Waste Prohibitions. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Ordinance 

 
b. Resolution to Temporarily Modify the Casitas Water Shortage 

Contingency Plan to Comply with the State Water Resources Control 
Board Drought Emergency Regulations, Resolution 2014-0038. 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution 

 
9. Resolution adopting the 2014 Integrated Regional Water Management 

Plan (IRWMP) Prepared by the Watersheds Coalition of Ventura County 
(WCVC), and Authorizing the General Manager, or Designee, to File a 
CEQA Notice of Exemption. 

 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution 
 
10. Resolution authorizing membership in Liebert Cassidy Whitmore’s 

Employment Relations Consortium in the amount of $3,346 for fiscal year 
2014-2015. 

 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution 
 
11. Recommend approval of engaging the services of Liebert Cassidy 

Whitmore for assistance in revising the District’s personnel policies. 
 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion approving recommendation 
 
12. Recommend approval of entering into an agreement with CPS HR 

Consulting in the amount of $17,000 plus expenses for the recruitment of 
the Operations and Maintenance Manager. 

 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion approving recommendation 
 
13. Information Items: 
 

a. Water Resources Minutes. 
b. Recreation Committee Minutes. 
c. Recreation Area Report for June 2014. 
d. Inaugural Steelhead Summit, October 21-22 at Ventura Harbor. 
e. Transition of the Drinking Water Program to the State Water 

Resources Control Board 
f. Water Consumption Report. 
g. CFD No. 2013-1 (Ojai) Monthly Cost Analysis. 
h. Investment Report. 

 
 2 



14. Adjournment  
 

If you require special accommodations for attendance at or participation in this 
meeting, please notify our office 24 hours in advance at (805) 649-2251, ext.  
113.  (Govt. Code Section 54954.1 and 54954.2(a). 

 

 3 



Minutes of the Casitas Municipal Water District 
Board Meeting Held 

July 23, 2014 
 

 A meeting of the Board of Directors was held July 23, 2014 at Casitas' 
Office, Oak View, California.  Directors Hicks, Bergen, Kaiser, Baggerly and 
Word were present.  Also present were Steve Wickstrum, General Manager, 
Rebekah Vieira, Clerk of the Board, and Attorney, John Mathews.  There were 
four staff members and five members of the public in attendance.  President 
Hicks led the group in the flag salute. 

 
1. Public Comments (items not on the agenda – three minute limit). 
  

None 
    
2. General Manager comments.   
 

Mr. Wickstrum informed the board that Neil Cole and Mike Gibson showed 
the Robles Fish Passage to a contingency from China who had asked to view it 
as they were interested in the Vaki unit.    The Boathouse arrived and is being 
assembled at Coyote ramp.  A water system update was provided to the AWA 
Water Issues Committee on July 15th and I have been asked by the Ojai Rotary 
to do a presentation on August 19th. 
 

Mr. Wickstrum then presented the Board with a letter and Plaque that was 
received a letter from AWWA regarding 50 years of service by Casitas to the 
water industry. 
 
3. Board of Director comments. 
 

Director Baggerly apologized to Director Kaiser and the board for going a 
bit overboard on something he said regarding the QID program at the last 
meeting.  
 

Director Kaiser informed the board that if they have not visited the lake 
they should do so and see what is happening on the north side.   
 

President Hicks reported on his attendance at the AWA Water Issues 
meeting and how good our people are compared to others in other organizations. 
He mentioned that it might be good for the entire board to hear Mr. Wickstrum’s 
presentation.  
 
4. Consent Agenda       ADOPTED 
 
 a. Minutes of July 9, 2014 Meeting. 

b. Recommend approval of the request of Martin Peck for Leak Relief 
in the amount of $2,603.54. 

c. Recommend approval of a purchase order to Aqua Metric in the 
amount of $76,953.88 for the purchase of 515 Sensus Technology 
meter transducer units. 

 1 



d. Recommend approval of a purchase order to Clark Engineering 
Construction, Inc. in the not to exceed amount of $21,023.00 for the 
manufacturing, painting and delivery of 300 cross member adaptors 
for the repair of Casitas Dam’s intake structure. 

e. Recommend approval of a purchase order to Travis Agricultural 
Construction, Inc. in the amount of $20,594 for the construction of 
the De La Garrigue Bridge Repairs and authorize expenditures up 
to $25,000. 

f. Recommend approval of the invoice to CSAC in the amount of 
$97,245 for the Excess Workers’ Compensation Insurance.  

 
 The consent agenda was offered by Director Kaiser, seconded by Director 
Bergen and passed by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Word, Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks 
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
5. Bills         APPROVED 
 

Director Word questioned check number 18431 and 18442. These are 
related to a workers’ compensation claim. President Hicks questioned the fish gill 
testing.  Mr. Wickstrum explained this is for our fisheries unit.  Director Bergen 
added it is DNA testing to look at the genetics of the fish.  The board discussed 
having an updated report from the Fisheries Biologist.  
 

On the motion of Director Word, seconded by Director Kaiser, the bills 
were approved by the following roll call vote:  
 

AYES: Directors: Word, Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks 
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
6. Recommend the Board of Directors hear from counsel, discuss and 

consider the issuance of a letter regarding an allegation of a Brown Act 
Violation and Demand for Corrective Action.   APPROVED 

 
 Mr. Mathews informed the board that this issue was brought to us by the 
union representative regarding issues involving a personnel sub-committee 
meeting.  The issues were the time of the meeting was incorrect, they said it was 
not posted in a timely manner and they state that a special meeting cannot be 
held for labor negotiations. The website shows the time the agenda was posted 
as Central Standard Time which is two hours ahead and no actions were taken at 
this meeting.  The appropriate thing is to respond to the Union with a letter that 
there is no intent to do this again. 
 

Director Word questioned having labor negotiations at a special meeting 
and Director Baggerly stated it will have to be at a regular meeting. 
 

 2 



 On the motion of Director Bergen, seconded by Director Kaiser the above 
recommendation was approved by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Word, Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks 
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
7. Quagga Mussel Ad Hoc Committee – Discussion and Direction 
 

a. Notice to Stakeholders from the Department of Fish and Wildlife 
regarding Proposed Regulations Related to Dreissenid Mussels. 
 

b. Recommend approval of suggested revisions to California 
Department of Fish & Wildlife Dreissenid Mussel Regulations. 

APPROVED 
 

Director Baggerly reported that the proposed regulations were reviewed 
and suggestions were added that would make it more effective.  Director Word 
suggested that we consider how this may affect us if we end up with Quagga 
Mussels in our body of water.  Director Baggerly responded that we will be 
developing a vulnerability assessment and control plan and we will be in 
complete compliance with the bill.  We have a spill prevention plan in place in 
that we stop diverting within two feet from spill. 
 
 On the motion of Director Baggerly, seconded by Director Kaiser the 
suggested changes to the regulations and the cover letter (item c below) were 
approved by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Word, Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks 
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 

 
c. Recommend approval of a cover letter regarding the proposed 

regulations related to Dreissenid Mussels. APPROVED 
 

Adopted by motion listed in item b, above. 
 
8. General Manager’s report and discussion and direction by the Board of 

Directors regarding the State Water Resources Control Board’s Resolution 
adopting Statewide Urban Water Conservation. 

 
 Mr. Wickstrum reported that the State Water Resources Control Board has 
issued a resolution for emergency regulations calling for statewide urban water 
conservation.  We will review our participation in this and determine how it affects 
us.  The premise is on the current drought conditions with the state being 
extremely stressed.  Prompt action is needed by water agencies and customers 
to achieve the demand reduction goal in urban water usage. 
 

 3 



We have a water waste regulation that meets the requirements in their 
document but we will review it and bring it back to the board for modification and 
adoption to move forward. The State’s resolution calls for mandatory restrictions 
on outdoor irrigation suggesting customers limit irrigation to no more than two 
days of irrigation per week and comparing their current usage to the usage in 
2013.  A lot of agencies are looking at this and commenting that we already 
reduced usage in 2013.  We are down about 15% from May of 2013.  In light of 
the drought we may want to consider the suspension of the leak relief program 
as there is a need for responsibility of one’s water system. This will go to the 
Finance Committee for further discussion. 
 

George Galgas asked about the testing and flushing of hydrants and 
suggested water trucks collect the water. 
 
9. Information Items: 
 

a. Recreation Committee Minutes. 
b. Personnel Committee Minutes. 
c. Finance Committee Minutes. 
d. Letter from the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission in response 

to the District’s June 13, 2014 letter. 
e. Investment Report. 

 
Director Baggerly read the following comments: 
Instead of commenting on each page and paragraph of FERC’s 

letter which is in today’s agenda packet, I would like to offer an overview 
in just plain language about the letter as a whole. 
 

The first comment is to acknowledge that FERC put more effort 
into this letter than the previous one, but FERC does not seem to 
understand the difference between United’s claims about working on 
ways to “control Quagga Mussels” versus actually being able to produce 
results and eliminate the live mussels from water being discharged from 
Lake Piru. Thus, if we choose to communicate with FERC again, it will be 
very important to emphasize that in spite of all United’s claims about 
how hard they are working to control Quagga Mussels, it is simply a fact 
that they have not found a way to kill the Quagga Mussels they are 
continuously releasing from Lake Piru into Lower Piru Creek.  By the 
way, all that Casitas has ever asked is to take a common sense approach 
and stop releasing mussel infested water until one or more ways is found 
to kill the mussels. 
 
  The second comment is that FERC does not seem to understand 
the potential environmental and economic disaster that can result in 
Ventura County from just one fertile female mussel spawning in the 
Santa Clara and Ventura Rivers – to put this in perspective, just one 
 4 



fertile mussel can disperse up to one million eggs per year and, as we 
already know, fisheries in the Great Lakes have already been destroyed. 
 

My third comment is that neither FERC nor United seem to 
understand that, in the near future, they could be held liable for both 
actual costs and damages levied against them stemming from damage 
caused by Quagga Mussels.  The costs and damages may be determined 
by a court based upon damage to water collection, treatment and 
distribution systems that rely on surface water delivered by United from 
the Santa Clara River. Finally, the negative impact on property values in 
southwest Ventura County could be devastating and equal to or worse 
than the devaluation that took place in 2008 when both the real estate 
and financial bubbles burst.  
 

So, what I would like to do is suggest that we send a letter to FERC 
asking them to use their authority to stop United from releasing mussel 
infested water until a way is found to kill 100% of the Quagga Mussels in 
any discharge and, hopefully, all of Lake Piru. 
 

President Hicks responded that they have addressed a lot of those issues 
and I don’t feel comfortable sending another letter.  
 

Director Kaiser commented on the July 7th Recreation committee minutes 
and appreciated the committee looking into the summer staffing issues.  The 
minutes pointed out that overtime is ok if it is not excessive, but they have 
probably spent over $100,000 on overtime in the Recreation area.  President 
Hicks added they have hired four APSO’s and this should eliminate a lot of the 
overtime and they are taking steps to eliminate it.  Director Word added this 
overtime is not emergency driven, it is poor planning. 
 
11. Adjournment  
 
 President Hicks adjourned the meeting at 3:58 p.m. 
 
 
      __________________________ 
      Pete Kaiser, Secretary 
 
 
 
     

 5 











































CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
Memorandum 

 
DATE:  July 31, 2014 
 
TO:         Board of Directors 
 
FROM:  General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
 
Re:  Contract between the United States of America and the Casitas Municipal Water 

District for the Repayment of Funds Expended for the Federally Performed Safety 
of Dams Act Modification Program at the Casitas Dam and Reservoir 

           
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors review and approve (by Resolution) the form and 
content of the Safety of Dams Program Repayment Contract and authorize the President of the 
Board to execute the Contract. 
 
Overview: 
 
In the 1980’s and 1990’s, the Bureau of Reclamation (Reclamation) performed several 
investigations of Casitas Dam to evaluate the risks that could be associated with the structural 
performance of Casitas Dam during an extreme seismic event.  The Bureau concluded that in 
the event of a maximum credible earthquake, Casitas Dam could become unstable and the 
outlet works could become compromised, posing a high damage risk to downstream populations 
and water delivery.  In response to the findings of the investigations, Reclamation implemented 
the Casitas Dam Modification Project with the funding provided under the amendments to the 
Reclamation Safety of Dams Act (SOD Act). Reclamation proceeded with the Project in 1999 
and substantially completed the project on February 1, 2002.  Substantial completion was 
declared by Reclamation when it was determined that the majority of the modification work had 
been completed and the safety risk had been reduced to an acceptable level.   
 
As described in Exhibit A of the Contract, the final total cost for the modification project is 
$35,024,108.37.  The provisions of the SOD Act require that fifteen (15) percent of the 
modification cost incurred to correct the safety problems, including any interest, be reimbursed 
by local agency to the United States.  The reimbursable cost for the SOD project is 
$5,253,616.26.  The SOD Act, interest bearing for that portion of the project costs that support 
Municipal and industrial uses (42.67%), and interest–free for that portion of the project identified 
as benefitting irrigation uses (57.33%).  To lessen the compounding of interest on the M&I 
portion of the repayment cost, Casitas made an advanced payment of $2,615,455.14 toward the 
M&I portion of the contract.  The remaining total of reimbursable costs due to Reclamation is 
$3,014,551.18.  
 
The SOD Act provides for a repayment of reimbursable costs during a maximum period of fifty 
years from the date of project completion.  For this contract, the term is 37 years that begins with 
a February 2014 payment.  The contract also provides for reconsideration to shorten the 
repayment period if it can be shown that irrigation has a higher capacity to repay.  The 
assessment on irrigation’s repayment capacity will be conducted by Reclamation every five 
years.  
 
Since 2002, Reclamation and Casitas have conducted many negotiations meetings to develop 
the contract and resolve outstanding issues with the modification work. Key and central to the 
 1 



modification work were (1) the erosion channel at the toe of the stability berm and (2) the erosion 
channels on the downstream face of Casitas Dam.  The erosion channel at the toe of the 
stability berm was repaired by Reclamation at an additional cost to the project, of which Casitas 
would pay $2,652.97 (Exhibit B-1) in the initial repayment action.  Reclamation and Casitas 
came to resolution on the erosions channels on the dam face by documenting in the 
Comprehensive Facility Review of Casitas dam that Casitas was not required to repair the 
erosion channels, but would monitor and report any changes that might lead to an additional 
SOD project. 
 
Process: 
 
If the form and content of the SOD contract is approved by the Board of Directors and the 
President of the Board is authorized to sign the contract, the General Manager will provide the 
resolution of the Board and signed contract to Reclamation.  The Bureau will begin their process 
of obtaining a long list of Bureau signatures and then send the completed contract back to 
Casitas.  One last step required in Section 18 (page 12) of the contract is for Casitas to obtain a 
confirmation of the contract by a final decree of a court.  The District’s counsel will be requested 
to assist in the performance of this section.  This process may take approximately two months to 
complete. 
 
Conclusion: 
 
We have before us a contract that has been negotiated in good faith and is in the best interest of 
the District and the Bureau.  If there are any questions in regard to the agreement, please do not 
hesitate to discuss each and every question with me. 

 2 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE UNITED STATES OF 
AMERICA AND THE CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT FOR THE REPAYMENT 
OF FUNDS EXPENDED FOR THE FEDERALLY PERFORMED SAFETY OF DAMS ACT 

MODIFICATION PROGRAM AT THE CASITAS DAM AND RESERVOIR. 
 
 

WHEREAS, the United States of America acting by and through the Regional Director, 
Mid-Pacific Region, Bureau of Reclamation (Reclamation), has substantially completed the 
Casitas Dam Modification under the authority of the Reclamation Safety of Dams Act (SOD 
Act), as amended; and 
 

WHEREAS, the SOD Act provides for certain project costs incurred by the United States 
be reimbursed by the local water agency acting under Reclamation contract for the project 
purposes; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Parties have negotiated in good faith a contract for the repayment of 

reimbursable costs for the Casitas Dam Modification Project.  
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Casitas 
Municipal Water District that the President of the Board is hereby authorized to execute the 
Repayment Contract No. 8-07-20-W1531 providing for the repayment of Safety of Dams 
Modification Costs – Ventura River Project, California. 

 
ADOPTED this 13th day of August, 2014 

 
 
 

________________________ 
Bill Hicks, President 

       Casitas Municipal Water District 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_________________________ 
Pete Kaiser, Secretary 
Casitas Municipal Water District 















































CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

TO:  BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

FROM: STEVEN E. WICKSTRUM, GENERAL MANAGER 

SUBJECT: CASITAS ACTIONS TO COMPLY WITH THE STATE WATER BOARD’S 
DROUGHT EMERGENCY REGULATIONS 

DATE:  AUGUST 6, 2014 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors: 

1) Adopt a resolution to provide temporary modifications to the Casitas Water Shortage 
Contingency Plan that conforms to the State’s drought emergency regulations.  

2) Rescind Resolution No. 08-09, Resolution Approving a Water Waste Prohibition 
Regulation, and adopt the Water Waste Prohibition Ordinance. 

 
BACKGROUND: 
The State is currently experiencing severe water conditions that are the result of the third 
consecutive year of extremely low rainfall and snow pack.  In January 2014, Governor Brown 
issued an executive order to declare a drought state of emergency and directed the State Water 
Board to notify urban water suppliers to implement drought contingency plans to limit outdoor 
irrigation and other waste of water.  On July 15, 2014, the State Water Board adopted 
Resolution No. 2014-0038 that implemented an emergency regulations and actions to further 
reduce water demands of urban customers. The State’s resolution states that these regulations 
shall remain in effect for 270 days unless otherwise changed (longer or shorter period of time) by 
the State Water Board.  The text of the State Water Board’s drought emergency regulations call 
on all urban water suppliers to implement water waste prohibitions and the supplier’s approved 
Water Shortage Contingency Plan at a stage that requires mandatory water use restrictions on 
outdoor irrigation of ornamental landscapes or turf with potable water.  Where no Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan exists, the State is requiring the urban irrigation be limited to two 
days per week. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
In review of the District’s current policies contained in resolutions and ordinances, there appears 
to be a need for improvement in the language concerning drought action in order to comply with 
the State’s drought emergency regulations.  The following actions are recommended: 
 

1. Rescind Resolution No. 08-09 and Adopt a Water Waste Prohibition Ordinance.  In 
the review of current regulations and application to the State’s directive to reduce urban 
water demand, it appears that an update and re-adoption of the Water Waste 
Prohibitions is in order.  The current regulations are connected to lower stages of water 
storage in Lake Casitas and referenced to the Water Efficiency and Allocation Program 
(WEAP).  Current practice should be changed to permanently prohibit water waste 
practices and provide for a process for violation notification, violation penalties, and a 
process for appeals.  The recommended action is provided in the attached Water Waste 
Prohibition Ordinance for consideration by the Board of Directors.  If adopted, the 
ordinance will be publicly posted in local newspapers within ten days of its adoption. 



2. Modification of the Casitas Water Shortage Contingency Plan.  The Casitas 
Municipal Water District presently has a State approved Water Shortage Contingency 
Plan (WSCP), adopted in 1992, that meets the requirements of Water Code section 
10632. In review of the WSCP, there is no WSCP provision that clearly imposes a 
mandatory restriction in the number of days for urban outdoor irrigation of ornamental 
landscapes or turf with potable water.  Staff have suggested moving to three specific 
days to allow watering, but this direction does not appear to comply with the State’s 
regulations because Casitas’ WSCP does not specify mandatory limits for urban 
watering. In order to achieve the requirements of the State’s drought emergency 
regulations, the District should consider adopting a resolution that will temporarily modify 
the WSCP to include an urban irrigation restriction to no more than two days per week. 
This direction would also allow the public to pick the two days that are best for each 
customer and compliance enforcement would result on reports of exceeding the two 
days per week. The recommended action is provided as a resolution for consideration by 
the Board of Directors. 

 
3. Public Outreach for Drought Messaging.  A drought messaging campaign will target 

Casitas’ direct water customers with the goals  of educating the direct water customers 
about new water use restrictions, building support for the drought campaign, and 
ultimately encouraging direct urban water customers to increase their water efficiency 
practices and reduce their overall water demand. The success of the program will be 
measured by compliance levels of drought restrictions, public feedback and water 
demand reduction from urban customers.  A press release and follow-up media contacts 
will occur immediately after the adoption of the Board actions regarding the drought. Staff 
will also follow the actions of the Board with the: 
 Education of employees on the water use restrictions, staff responsibilities and 

actions; 
 Mailing of an informational flyer to each direct urban water customer account; 
 Addition of web-page for public’s reporting of suspected violation of water waste 

prohibitions to Casitas; and 
 Update the Casitas website with adopted water use regulations. 

  
Staffing 
Our initial review of staffing is to coordinate actions with current water conservation personnel 
and call on additional temporary assistance as deemed necessary. 
 
CONCLUSION: 
The State will require reporting from each water supplier on their progress to reduce urban water 
demands. The State may consider additional measures should the demand reductions not be 
attained or if the drought should continue or worsen into 2015.  The actions proposed in the 
resolution and ordinance are consistent with those actions being taken by urban water suppliers 
state-wide. 
 
If there any questions in regard to these actions, please do not hesitate to ask.  
 



Water Waste Prohibition Ordinance  8/13/2014 

 
 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

ORDINANCE NO.___ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT  
ESTABLISHING WATER WASTE PROHIBITIONS 

 
THIS ORDINANCE is adopted in light of the following facts and circumstances, which are hereby 
found and declared by the Casitas Municipal Water District (Casitas) Board of Directors: 
 
WHEREAS, Article X, Section 2 of the California Constitution and Section 100 of the California Water 
Code declare that the general welfare requires water resources be put to beneficial use, therefore, waste 
or unreasonable use or unreasonable method of use of water be prevented, and conservation of water be 
fully exercised with a view to the reasonable and beneficial use thereof. 
 
WHEREAS, the adoption and enforcement of this Ordinance is necessary to help manage Casitas’ 
potable water supply and to avoid or minimize the effects of drought within the Casitas service area. 
 
WHEREAS, Casitas has the power to perform all acts necessary to fully carry out the provisions of this 
Ordinance consistent with Section 71640 and Sections 10608 through 10656 of the California Water 
Code. 
  
WHEREAS,  this Ordinance rescinds and replaces Casitas Municipal Water District Resolution No. 08-
09, Resolution Approving a Water Waste Prohibition Regulation. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Directors of the Casitas Municipal Water District as follows: 
 
1. TITLE. 

This Ordinance shall be known as the Water Waste Prohibition Ordinance. 
 
2. APPLICABILITY. 

The provisions of this Ordinance shall apply to all persons, corporations, public or private 
entities, governmental agencies or institutions, or any other direct water customers of the Casitas 
Municipal Water District.  The water customers of other water purveyors shall be governed by 
the prohibitions that are adopted by the other water purveyors. 
 

3. PROHIBITED USES. 
A. The following uses of water are permanently prohibited and are in effect year round: 

a. General Waste:  Indiscriminate running of water or washing with water which is 
wasteful and without reason or purpose. 

b. Washing of Exterior Surfaces:  The washing of hard or paved surfaces, including 
but not limited to sidewalks, walkways, driveways, parking areas, tennis courts, 
patios or alleys, except when necessary to alleviate safety or sanitary hazards or when 
broom or other waterless device will not suffice.  If necessary, washing may only be 
done with a bucket or similar container, a hose equipped with a positive shut-off 

Page 1 of 5 
 



Water Waste Prohibition Ordinance  8/13/2014 

nozzle, a pressure washer, a low-volume high pressure water efficient water broom, 
or a cleaning machine equipped to recycle the water used. 

c. Cleaning of Structures and Vehicles:  The washing of building exteriors, mobile 
homes, cars, boats or recreational vehicles without the use of a positive shut-off 
nozzle on either the hose or pressure washer. 

d. Watering/Irrigation Runoff Control:  The watering of grass, lawn, groundcover, 
shrubbery, open ground, crops and trees, including agricultural irrigation, in a manner 
or to an extent which allows water to run off the area being watered.  Every water 
user is deemed to have under their control, at all times, their water distribution lines 
and facilities, and to know the manner and extent of their water use and run off. 

e. Limits on Watering Hours:  The watering or irrigating of outdoor ornamental 
landscapes and turf areas between the hours of 10:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. Pacific 
Standard Time on any day. (Does not apply to irrigation systems that use drip-
irrigation and weather-based controllers or stream rotor sprinklers that meet a 70% 
efficiency standard.  Exceptions may be authorized by the General Manager where 
there is no ability to not water between 10:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.). 

f. Watering During Rainfall:  The watering of grass, lawn, groundcover, shrubbery, 
open ground, crops and trees, including agricultural irrigation, at any time while it is 
raining. 

g. Drought Restrictions:  Watering/irrigating during publicly declared curtailment 
period in a manner that is not compliant with drought restrictions. 

h. Plumbing Leaks:  The escape of water through leaks, breaks, or malfunctions within 
the water user’s plumbing or distribution system, for a substantial period of time 
within which such break or leak should reasonably have been discovered and 
corrected.   

i. Fountains and Decorative Water Features: The operation of any ornamental 
fountain using water from the District’s domestic water system unless water for such 
use is re-circulated. 

j. Cooling:  The use of water in mechanical equipment purchased and installed after the 
adoption of this Ordinance that utilizes a single pass cooling system.  Water used for 
all cooling purposes shall be re-circulated. 

k. Drinking Water Served Upon Request Only:  Eating and drinking establishments, 
including but not limited to restaurants, hotels, cafes, cafeterias, bars, clubs or other 
public places where food or drinks are sold or served, are prohibited from providing 
drinking water to customers unless expressly requested.  Affected establishments 
must prominently display notice informing their customers of this requirement using 
clear and easily understood language. 

l. Restaurant Non-water Conserving Dish Wash Spray Valves:  Food preparation 
establishments, such as restaurants or cafes, are prohibited from using non-water 
conserving dish wash spray valves. 

m. Providing Option to Not Launder Linen and Towels Daily:  Hotels, motels, 
vacation rentals and other commercial lodging establishments must provide 
customers the option of not having towels and linen laundered daily.  Commercial 
lodging establishments must prominently display notice of this option in each 
bathroom using clear and easily understood language. 

n. Commercial Car Wash Systems:  Installation of non-recirculating water systems is 
prohibited in new or renovations of commercial conveyor car washes systems. 

 

Page 2 of 5 
 



Water Waste Prohibition Ordinance  8/13/2014 

4. EXEMPTED WATER USES. 
A. All water use associated with the operation and maintenance of fire suppression equipment or 

employed by the District for water quality flushing and sanitation purposes shall be exempt from 
the provisions of this Ordinance.   

B. Use of water supplied by gray water or rainwater collection system is also exempt; however, use 
of water from these systems is not exempt from the applicable regulations of the State and local 
jurisdictions governing the use of such water. 

C. Supervised testing, adjusting, or repairing of irrigation systems is allowed any time for no more 
than five (5) minutes per station. 

 
5. VIOLATIONS AND PENALTIES. 

A. Any person, who uses, causes to be used, or permits the use of water in violation of this 
Ordinance is guilty of an offense punishable as provided herein. 

 
B. Enforcement of Violation.  Complaints of water waste will be investigated and enforced by the 

District in the form of a notice of violation.  The following officers and employees of the Casitas 
Municipal Water district are hereby designated and authorized to issue citations for enforcement 
of this Ordinance: 

Operations and Maintenance Manager 
Public Affairs/Resource Manager 
Water Conservation Coordinator 
Utility Workers 
Water employees designated by the General Manager 

 
C. Notice of Violation.  The notice to the District water customer of a violation of this Ordinance 

will be issued by either a telephone call, mail, hand-delivery, or posting at the entrance of the 
violator’s premises. The District will issue a written notice that state the time, place, and general 
description of the violation or repeat of violation, as well as a time frame in which the violation 
must be corrected.  District staff may use discretion when determining the correction time. 
 

D. Consequence of Violation.  Administrative fines and water service actions may be levied and 
applied for each violation of a provision of this Ordinance as follows: 

 
1. Penalties:  Penalties for failure to comply with any provision of the ordinance are as follows: 

 
a. First Violation:  The District will issue a written notice to the water customer and 

attach a copy of this Ordinance. 
 

b. Second Violation:  If the first violation is not corrected within the time frame specified 
by the District, or if a second violation occurs within the following twelve (12) months 
after the first violation notice, a second notice of violation will be issued and an 
administrative fine of one hundred dollars ($100.00) shall be levied for the second 
violation of this Ordinance.   
 

c. Third Violation:  A third violation within the following twelve (12) months after the 
date of issuance of the second notice of violation is punishable by an administrative fine 
of two hundred fifty dollars ($250.00). 
 

Page 3 of 5 
 



Water Waste Prohibition Ordinance  8/13/2014 

d. Fourth and Subsequent Violations:  Each day that a violation of this Ordinance occurs 
beyond the remedy allowance provided in the third notice of violation is a separate 
offense, subject to any or all of the following penalties: 

1. Water service may be turned off or flow may be restricted.  Where water service 
is turned off or flow restricted, it shall be turned on or unrestricted upon 
correction of the violation and the payment of the reestablishment charges, staff 
time, and District material purchases per the District’s Rates and Regulations for 
Water Service in effect at the time. 
 

2. A fine of not more than $600 or imprisonment in the county jail for not more than 
30 days, or both the fine and imprisonment, may be imposed upon conviction 
under Section 71644 of the California Water Code, or fines/ penalties as defined 
and allowable under Section 53069.4 of the Government Code may be imposed.  

 
e. Payment of Administrative Fines:  The water customer is responsible for the full 

payment of administrative fines.  Each administrative fine shall be applied in the 
customer’s regular water billing.  Payment of the administrative fine will be the final 
responsibility of the individual named on the water account.  Non-payment of fines will 
be subject to the same remedies as non-payment of basic water rates, in accordance with 
the Casitas Rates and Regulations for Water Service. 

 
3. Appeal:  Any customer against whom a penalty is levied pursuant to this Ordinance shall 

have the right to appeal as follows: 
a. The customer request for an appeal consideration must be in writing, 

legible, and received by the General Manager within ten (10) calendar 
days of the issuance of the notice of violation to the customer.  Any 
determination not timely appealed shall be deemed final.  The written 
request for appeal consideration shall include: 

i. A description of the issue, 
ii. Evidence supporting the appeal, and 

iii. A request for resolution of the dispute. 
b. The General Manager will review the material submitted and make an 

independent determination of the issue, which shall be mailed to the 
customer within fifteen (15) calendar days of receipt of the request for 
appeal. 

c. The General Manager’s determination may be appealed in writing 
within ten (10) calendar days of the mailing of the notice of 
determination.  The appeal of the General Manager’s determination 
shall be heard and considered by the Board of Directors at an 
upcoming regular meeting of the Board.  Notice of the hearing shall be 
mailed to the customer at least ten (10) calendar days prior to the date 
of the appeal hearing.  The Board may, in its discretion affirm, reverse, 
or modify the determination.  The Board’s determination is final. 

 
6. SEVERABILITY.  If any competent court shall find any portion of this Ordinance 

unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of any other portion thereof. 
 

7. EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Ordinance becomes effective this __ day of ______, 2014. 

Page 4 of 5 
 



Water Waste Prohibition Ordinance  8/13/2014 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Casitas Municipal 
Water District held on August 13, 2014 by the following vote: 
 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 
 
   APPROVED: 
 
   _______________________________________ 
   Bill Hicks, President 
   Casitas Municipal Water District 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 
Peter Kaiser, Secretary 
Casitas Municipal Water District 

Page 5 of 5 
 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 
 

 
 

A RESOLUTION TO TEMPORARILY MODIFY THE  
CASITAS WATER SHORTAGE CONTIGENCY PLAN 

TO COMPLY WITH THE STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD 
DROUGHT EMERGENCY REGULATIONS, RESOLUTION 2014-0038 

 
WHEREAS, on January 17, 2014, the Governor of the State of California 

proclaimed a state of emergency in the State of California due to water supply impacts 
caused by three consecutive years of drought conditions in the state and called on all 
Californians to reduce their water usage by 20 percent; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Governor proclaimed a second executive order, issued April 25, 

2014, to direct the State Water Resources Control Board to adopt drought emergency 
regulations, pursuant to Water Code section 1058.5; and 

 
WHEREAS, on July 15, 2014, the State Water Resources Control Board adopted 

Resolution 2014-0038 drought emergency regulations for mandatory statewide water 
conservation actions that are to remain in effect for 270 days unless extended or repealed; 
and  
 

WHEREAS, the State Water Resources Control Board regulations call on urban 
water suppliers to implement all requirements and actions of the stage of its water 
shortage contingency plan that imposes mandatory restrictions on outdoor irrigation of 
ornamental landscapes or turf with potable water. 

 
WHEREAS, the Casitas Municipal Water District adopted a Water Shortage 

Contingency Plan in 1992, by Resolution No. 92-11, that set water use reduction goals 
for the various stages of Lake Casitas storage, but does not does not refer to specific 
mandatory landscape restrictions as referenced by the State Water Resources Control 
Board’s adopted drought emergency regulations ; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in accordance with the State Water Resources Control Board 
adopted Resolution 2014-0038 drought emergency regulations, where there is not a 
mandatory restriction of urban water demand incorporated in the water supplier’s Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan, the water supplier shall limit outdoor irrigation of 
ornamental landscapes or turf with potable water by the persons it serves to no more than 
two days per week or shall implement another mandatory conservation measure or 
measures intended to achieve a comparable reduction in water consumption by the 
persons it serves relative to the amount consumed in 2013: and  
 

 WHEREAS, Casitas has adopted the Water Waste Prohibition Ordinance that 
provides for the governance for drought restriction that may be implemented during a 
publicly declared curtailment period. 

1 
 



    
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the 
Casitas Municipal Water District that: 
 

1. The 1992 Water Shortage Contingency Plan (Resolution No. 92-11) is 
temporarily modified and mandated throughout the duration of the State’s drought 
emergency regulations as follows:  
 

A. Urban water customers of the District include the following water 
customer classifications: 

a. Residential 
b. Commercial 
c. Other 
d. Interdepartmental 

 
B. A mandatory restriction applied to the District’s urban water 

customers’ outdoor irrigation of ornamental landscapes or turf with 
potable water to no more than two days per week.  

 
C. The water uses under the following subsections are excluded: 

a. Landscape irrigation systems that use drip-irrigation and 
weather-based controllers or stream rotor sprinklers that meet a 
70% efficiency standard.  

b. Watering or irrigating shrubs, trees, or vegetation intended for 
human consumption is allowed by use of an attended hand-held 
bucket or similar container, or an attended hand-held hose 
equipped with a positive shutoff nozzle or device.  This 
exception does not apply to the watering of lawns. 

 
2. A variance may be considered and granted by the General Manager for the 

following conditions: 
a. Sports Fields, defined as a public or private facility improved with 

apparatus and/or striping supporting a public benefit use or business 
necessity that provides turf areas as playing surface for regularly 
scheduled (at least weekly) individual and team sports, and does not 
include a facility on a residential property.   

b. Large Landscape Areas are defined as an area of vegetation at least three 
(3) acres in size supporting a business necessity or public benefit use such 
as parks, golf courses, schools, and cemeteries.   

c. Urban water customers that maintain Sports Fields and Large Landscape 
Areas may request in writing a variance from the mandatory two-day per 
week restriction for outdoor irrigation of ornamental landscape or turf in 
order to maintain turf areas by submitting to the General Manager a 
written alternative watering schedule that will result for each preceding 

2 
 



month in an overall water use reduction by 20 percent from the water used 
each same month during 2013. 

d. The failure of the urban water customer to attain the 20 percent irrigation 
reduction in any one preceding month from that amount of water use in 
2013 during the same month may result in the cancellation of the variance. 

 
3. All provisions within this resolution shall be adhered to according to the same 

restrictions and enforcement measures as outlined within the Water Waste 
Prohibition Ordinance. 

 
ADOPTED this 13th day of August, 2014. 
 

________________________________ 
Bill Hicks, President 
Casitas Municipal Water District 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Pete Kaiser, Secretary 
Casitas Municipal Water District 

3 
 



 

 

 

State Water Board Approves Emergency Regulation to Ensure 

Agencies and State Residents Increase Water Conservation 

For Immediate Release                      Contact: George Kostyrko 
July 15, 2014              (916) 341-7365 
          
In response to the ongoing severe drought, on Tuesday the State Water Resources Control Board 

approved an emergency regulation to ensure water agencies, their customers and state residents 

increase water conservation in urban settings or face possible fines or other enforcement. 

The new conservation regulation is intended to reduce outdoor urban water use. The regulation, 

adopted by the State Water Board, mandates minimum actions to conserve water supplies both for 

this year and into 2015.  Most Californians use more water outdoors than indoors.  In some areas, 

50 percent or more of daily water use is for lawns and outdoor landscaping. 

Many communities and water suppliers have taken bold steps over the years and in this year to 

reduce water use; however, many have not and much more can and should be done statewide to 

extend diminishing water supplies. 

With this regulation, all Californians will be expected to stop: washing down driveways and 

sidewalks; watering of outdoor landscapes that cause excess runoff; using a hose to wash a motor 

vehicle, unless the hose is fitted with a shut-off nozzle, and using potable water in a fountain or 

decorative water feature, unless the water is recirculated.  The regulation makes an exception for 

health and safety circumstances. 

Larger water suppliers will be required to activate their Water Shortage Contingency Plan to a level 

where outdoor irrigation restrictions are mandatory.  In communities where no water shortage 

contingency plan exists, the regulation requires that water suppliers either limit outdoor irrigation to 

twice a week or implement other comparable conservation actions. Finally, large water suppliers 

must report water use on a monthly basis to track progress.  

Local agencies could ask courts to fine water users up to $500 a day for failure to implement 

conservation requirements in addition to their existing authorities and processes. The State Water 

Board could initiate enforcement actions against water agencies that don’t comply with the new 

regulations.  Failure to comply with a State Water Board enforcement order by water agencies is 

subject to up to a $10,000 a day penalty. 

“We are facing the worst drought impact that we or our grandparents have ever seen,” said State 

Water Board Chair Felicia Marcus.  “And, more important, we have no idea when it will end. This 



 
drought’s impacts are being felt by communities all over California.  Fields are fallowed; 

communities are running out of water, fish and wildlife will be devastated.  The least that urban 

Californians can do is to not waste water on outdoor uses. It is in their self-interest to conserve 

more, now, to avoid far more harsh restrictions, if the drought lasts into the future. These 

regulations are meant to spark awareness of the seriousness of the situation, and could be 

expanded if the drought wears on and people do not act.”  

 

In addition to approving the emergency conservation regulation today, the State Water Board 

made a plea for water suppliers, communities and businesses to do even more. For example, 

water agencies are being asked to step up their programs to fix leaks and other sources of water 

loss, use more recycled water or captured stormwater, and find additional ways to incentivize 

demand reduction among their customers.  

 

The new regulation was developed following two drought emergency declarations by Governor 

Brown. On January 17, Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. issued a drought emergency proclamation 

following three dry or critically dry years in California. 

   

The April 25 Executive Order issued by the Governor directs the State Water Board to adopt an 

emergency regulation as it deems necessary, pursuant to Water Code section 1058.5, to ensure 

that urban water suppliers implement conservation measures.  

 

As drought conditions continue, the State Water Board may revisit this regulation and consider 

other measures to enhance conservation efforts throughout the state.  

 

Following Board adoption, the regulation will likely go into effect on or about August 1, following 

submittal to the Office of Administrative Law. The emergency regulation remains in effect for 270 

days, unless extended by the State Water Board due to ongoing drought conditions.  

For more information on the proposals leading to this Board action, please visit the Emergency 
Water Conservation website. 

Governor Brown has called on all Californians to reduce their water use by 20 percent and prevent 

water waste – visit SaveOurH2O.org to find out how everyone can do their part, and visit 

Drought.CA.Gov to learn more about how California is dealing with the effects of the drought. 

http://www.swrcb.ca.gov/waterrights/water_issues/programs/drought/emergency_regulations_waterconservation.shtml
http://www.swrcb.ca.gov/waterrights/water_issues/programs/drought/emergency_regulations_waterconservation.shtml
http://saveourh2o.org/
http://ca.gov/drought/


STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD 
RESOLUTION NO. 2014-0038 

 
TO ADOPT AN EMERGENCY REGULATION 

FOR STATEWIDE URBAN WATER CONSERVATION 
 
 
WHEREAS: 
 

 
1. On April 25, 2014, Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. issued an executive order to 

strengthen the state’s ability to manage water and habitat effectively in drought 
conditions and called on all Californians to redouble their efforts to conserve water.  The 
executive order finds that the continuous severe drought conditions present urgent 
challenges across the state including water shortages in communities and for agricultural 
production, increased wildfires, degraded habitat for fish and wildlife, threat of saltwater 
contamination, and additional water scarcity if drought conditions continue into 2015. 
The National Integrated Drought Information System reported that nearly 80% of the 
state was reported to be under "extreme" drought conditions at the end of June;   
 

2. The executive order refers to the Governor’s Proclamation No. 1-17-2014, issued on 
January 17, 2014, declaring a State of Emergency to exist in California due to severe 
drought conditions.  The January Proclamation notes that the state is experiencing 
record dry conditions, with 2014 projected to become the driest year on record.  Since 
January, state water officials indicate that reservoirs, rainfall totals and the snowpack 
remain critically low.  This follows two other dry or below average years, leaving 
reservoir storage at alarmingly low levels.  The January Proclamation highlights the 
State’s dry conditions, lack of precipitation and the resulting effects on drinking water 
supplies, the cultivation of crops, and the survival of animals and plants that rely on 
California’s rivers and streams.  The January Proclamation also calls on all Californians 
to reduce their water usage by 20 percent;   

 
3. There is no guarantee that winter precipitation will alleviate the drought conditions that 

the executive orders address, which will lead to even more severe impacts across the 
state if the drought wears on;  

 
4. Water Code section 1058.5 grants the State Water Board the authority to adopt 

emergency regulations in certain drought years in order to: “prevent the waste, 
unreasonable use, unreasonable method of use, or unreasonable method of diversion, 
of water, to promote water recycling or water conservation, to require curtailment of 
diversions when water is not available under the diverter’s priority of right, or in 
furtherance of any of the foregoing, to require reporting of diversion or use or the 
preparation of monitoring reports”;   

 
5. Over 400,000 acres of farmland are expected to be fallowed, thousands of people may 

be out of work, communities risk running out of drinking water, and fish and wildlife will 
suffer.   

 
  

http://gov.ca.gov/news.php?id=18496
http://www.drought.gov/drought/
http://gov.ca.gov/news.php?id=18379


2 

6. Many Californians have taken bold steps over the years and in this year to reduce water 
use; nevertheless, the dire nature of the current drought requires additional conservation 
actions from residents and businesses.  Some severely affected communities have 
implemented water rationing, limiting water use in some cases to only 50 gallons per 
person per day, foregoing showers, laundry, toilet flushing, and all outdoor watering.  

 
7. Water conservation is the easiest, most efficient and most cost effective way to quickly 

reduce water demand and extend supplies into the next year, providing flexibility for all 
California communities.  Water saved this summer is water available next year, giving 
water suppliers the flexibility to manage their systems efficiently.  The more water that is 
conserved now, the less likely it is that a community will experience such dire 
circumstances that water rationing is required ; 
 

8. Most Californians use more water outdoors than indoors.  In many areas, 50 percent 
or more of daily water use is for lawns and outdoor landscaping.  Outdoor water use 
is generally discretionary, and many irrigated landscapes would not suffer greatly from 
receiving a decreased amount of water;   
 

9. Public information and awareness is critical to achieving conservation goals and the 
Save Our Water campaign, run jointly by the Department of Water Resources (DWR) 
and the Association of California Water Agencies, is an excellent resource for 
conservation information and messaging that is integral to effective drought response 
(http://saveourwater.com). 

 
10. Enforcement against water waste is a key tool in conservation programs.  When 

conservation becomes a social norm in a community, the need for enforcement is 
reduced or eliminated; 
 

11. The emergency regulations set a minimum standard requiring only modest lifestyle 
changes across the state.  Many communities are already doing more and have been for 
years.  They should be commended, but can and should do more.  Others are not yet 
doing so and should at least do this, but should do much more given the severity of the 
drought; 
 

12. On July 8, 2014, the State Water Board issued public notice that the State Water Board 
would consider the adoption of the regulation at the Board’s regularly-scheduled  
July 15, 2014 public meeting, in accordance with applicable State laws and regulations.  
The State Water Board also distributed for public review and comment a Finding of 
Emergency that complies with State laws and regulations;   
 

13. On April 25, 2014, the Governor suspended the California Environmental Quality Act’s 
application to the State Water Board’s adoption of emergency regulations pursuant to 
Water Code section 1058.5 to prevent the waste, unreasonable use, unreasonable 
method of use, or unreasonable method of diversion of water, to promote water recycling 
or water conservation;   
 

14. As discussed above, the State Water Board is adopting the emergency regulation 
because of emergency drought conditions, the need for prompt action, and current 
limitations in the existing enforcement process; 
 

http://saveourwater.com/


3 

15. Disadvantaged communities may require assistance in increasing water conservation 
and state agencies should look for opportunities to provide assistance in promoting 
water conservation; 
 

16. Nothing in the regulations or in the enforcement provisions of the regulations, preclude a 
local agency from exercising its authority to adopt more stringent conservation 
measures.  Moreover, the Water Code does not impose a mandatory penalty for 
violations of the regulations adopted by this resolution and local agencies retain their 
enforcement discretion in enforcing the regulations, to the extent authorized, and may 
develop their own progressive enforcement practices to encourage conservation. 
 

 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT:  
  

1. The State Water Board adopts California Code of Regulations, title 23, sections 863, 
864, and 865, as appended to this resolution as an emergency regulation;   
 

2. The State Water Board staff will submit the regulation to the Office of Administrative Law 
(OAL) for final approval;  
 

3. If, during the approval process, State Water Board staff, the State Water Board, or OAL 
determines that minor corrections to the language of the regulation or supporting 
documentation are needed for clarity or consistency, the State Water Board Executive 
Director or designee may make such changes;  
 

4. These regulations shall remain in effect for 270 days after filing with the Secretary of 
State unless the State Water Board determines that it is no longer necessary due to 
changed conditions, or unless the State Water Board renews the regulations due to 
continued drought conditions as described in Water Code section 1058.5; 

 
5. The State Water Board directs staff to provide the Board with monthly updates on the 

implementation of the emergency regulations and their effect; 
 

6. Directs State Water Board staff to condition funding upon compliance with the 
emergency regulations, to the extent feasible; 

 
7. Directs State Water Board staff to work with the Department of Water Resources and the 

Save Our Water campaign to disseminate information regarding the emergency 
regulations; and 
 

8. Directs State Water Board staff in developing an electronic reporting portal to include 
data fields so that local agencies may provide monthly reporting data on (i) conservation-
related implementation measures or enforcement actions taken by the local agency and 
(ii) substitution during the drought of potable water with recycled water to extend water 
supplies. 

 
  



4 

THEREFORE BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT: 
 

9. The State Water Board commends water suppliers that have increased conservation 
messaging and adopted innovative strategies to enhance customer awareness of water 
use, such as applications that let customers compare their water use to water use by 
others; reduce system losses, such as fixing system leaks which can deplete supplies by 
10 percent or more; and establish incentives to reduce demand, such as tiered or 
drought rate structures.  The State Water Board also commends all Californians that 
have already been working to maximize their conservation efforts, both at home and at 
work; 

 
10. The State Water Board calls upon water suppliers to take the following actions: 

 
Educate customers and employees 

 Retail water suppliers should provide notice of the regulations in English and 
Spanish in one or more of the following ways: newspaper advertisements, bill inserts, 
website homepage, social media, notices in public libraries; 

 Wholesale suppliers should include reference to the regulations in their customer 
communications; 

 All water suppliers should train personnel on the regulations;  

 All water suppliers should provide signage where recycled or reclaimed water is 
being used for activities that the emergency regulations prohibit with the use of 
potable water, such as operation of fountains and other water features;  

 All water suppliers should redouble their efforts to disseminate information regarding 
opportunities and incentives to upgrade indoor fixtures and appliances;   

 All water suppliers should use education and the tools available through the Save 
Our Water website (http://saveourwater.com); and 

 All water suppliers should educate and prepare their boards and councils on the 
drought response actions contained in the emergency regulations and in this 
resolution, and to make sure that drought response items are placed on agendas as 
early as possible; 

 
Increasing local supplies 

 All water suppliers should accelerate the completion of projects that will conserve 
potable water by making use of non-potable supplies, such as recycled water, 
“greywater,” and stormwater collection projects; 

 All water suppliers should improve their leak reporting and response programs and 
request that police and fire departments and other local government personnel report 
leaks and water waste that they encounter during their routine duties/patrols; 

 Smaller water suppliers – those with fewer than 3,000 service connections – should 
take proactive steps to secure their communities’ water supplies and educate their 
customers about water conservation and the status of their supply reserves; 

 All water suppliers should conduct water loss audits and make leak detection and 
repair a top priority for the duration of the drought; and 

 All urban water suppliers should evaluate their rate structures and begin to 
implement needed changes as part of planning for another dry year.  Information and 
assistance on setting and implementing drought rates is available from the Alliance 
for Water Efficiency. (http://www.allianceforwaterefficiency.org/). 

 
  

http://saveourwater.com/
http://www.allianceforwaterefficiency.org/


5 

11. The State Water Board calls on all Californians to take the following additional actions: 

 Further reduce water demand, whether by using less water in daily routines indoors 
and out, retrofitting appliances and installing greywater and rainwater catchment 
systems; and 

 Check residential and business water bills to see if there are high charges that may 
indicate a leak and to fix the leak, if they are able, or contact their local water utility if 
they need assistance. 
 

12. The State Water Board encourages its staff, the Department of Water Resources, the 
Public Utilities Commission, urban water suppliers, and other local agencies to look for 
opportunities to encourage and promote new technologies that reduce water usage, 
including through timely access to water usage information and behavioral response. 
 

13. The State Water Board encourages all state and local agencies to look for additional 
opportunities to minimize potable water use in outdoor spaces. 
 

14. The State Water Board encourages investor-owned utilities to expeditiously submit 
applications for implementation of the regulations to the California Public Utilities 
Commission. 

 
 

CERTIFICATION 
 
The undersigned Clerk to the Board does hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and 
correct copy of a resolution duly and regularly adopted at a meeting of the State Water 
Resources Control Board held on July 15, 2014. 
 
AYE:  Chair Felicia Marcus  
  Vice Chair Frances Spivy-Weber 
   Board Member Steven Moore 
  Board Member Dorene D’Adamo 

NAY:  None 

ABSENT: Board Member Tam M. Doduc 

ABSTAIN: None 

 
              
  Jeanine Townsend 
  Clerk to the Board 
 



PROPOSED TEXT OF EMERGENCY REGULATIONS 
 

Article 22.5.  Drought Emergency Water Conservation 

 

Sec. 863 Findings of Drought Emergency 

 (a) The State Water Resources Control Board finds as follows: 

 (1) On January 17, 2014, the Governor issued a proclamation of a state of 

emergency under the California Emergency Services Act based on drought conditions; 

 (2) On April 25, 2014, the Governor issued a proclamation of a continued state of 

emergency under the California Emergency Services Act based on continued drought 

conditions; 

 (3) The drought conditions that formed the basis of the Governor’s emergency 

proclamations continue to exist; 

 (4) The present year is critically dry and has been immediately preceded by two or 

more consecutive below normal, dry, or critically dry years; and 

 (5) The drought conditions will likely continue for the foreseeable future and 

additional action by both the State Water Resources Control Board and local water 

suppliers will likely be necessary to further promote conservation. 

 

Authority: Wat. Code, § 1058.5. 

References: Wat. Code, §§ 102, 104, 105. 

  

Sec. 864 Prohibited Activities in Promotion of Water Conservation 

 (a) To promote water conservation, each of the following actions is prohibited, 

except where necessary to address an immediate health and safety need or to comply with 

a term or condition in a permit issued by a state or federal agency: 

 (1) The application of potable water to outdoor landscapes in a manner that causes 

runoff such that water flows onto adjacent property, non-irrigated areas, private and 

public walkways, roadways, parking lots, or structures; 

 (2) The use of a hose that dispenses potable water to wash a motor vehicle, except 

where the hose is fitted with a shut-off nozzle or device attached to it that causes it to 

cease dispensing water immediately when not in use; 

 (3) The application of potable water to driveways and sidewalks; and 

 (4) The use of potable water in a fountain or other decorative water feature, 

except where the water is part of a recirculating system. 

 (b) The taking of any action prohibited in subdivision (a) of this section, in 

addition to any other applicable civil or criminal penalties, is an infraction, punishable by 

a fine of up to five hundred dollars ($500) for each day in which the violation occurs.  

 

Authority: Wat. Code, § 1058.5. 

References: Wat. Code, §§ 102, 104, 105. 

 

  



PROPOSED TEXT OF EMERGENCY REGULATIONS 
 

Sec. 865 Mandatory Actions by Water Suppliers 

 (a) The term “urban water supplier,” when used in this section, refers to a supplier 

that meets the definition set forth in Water Code section 10617, except it does not refer to 

suppliers when they are functioning solely in a wholesale capacity, but does apply to 

suppliers when they are functioning in a retail capacity. 

(b)(1) To promote water conservation, each urban water supplier shall implement 

all requirements and actions of the stage of its water shortage contingency plan that 

imposes mandatory restrictions on outdoor irrigation of ornamental landscapes or turf 

with potable water. 

(2) As an alternative to subdivision (b)(1), an urban water supplier may submit a 

request to the Executive Director for approval of an alternate plan that includes 

allocation-based rate structures that satisfies the requirements of chapter 3.4 

(commencing with section 370) of division 1 of the Water Code, and the Executive 

Director may approve such an alternate plan upon determining that the rate structure, in 

conjunction with other measures, achieves a level of conservation that would be superior 

to that achieved by implementing limitations on outdoor irrigation of ornamental 

landscapes or turf with potable water by the persons it serves to no more than two days 

per week. 

 (c) To promote water conservation, each urban water supplier that does not have a 

water shortage contingency plan or has been notified by the Department of Water 

Resources that its water shortage contingency plan does not meet the requirements of 

Water Code section 10632 shall, within thirty (30) days, limit outdoor irrigation of 

ornamental landscapes or turf with potable water by the persons it serves to no more than 

two days per week or shall implement another mandatory conservation measure or 

measures intended to achieve a comparable reduction in water consumption by the 

persons it serves relative to the amount consumed in 2013. 

 (d) In furtherance of the promotion of water conservation each urban water 

supplier shall prepare and submit to the State Water Resources Control Board by the 15
th

 

of each month a monitoring report on forms provided by the Board.  The monitoring 

report shall include the amount of potable water the urban water supplier produced, 

including water provided by a wholesaler, in the preceding calendar month and shall 

compare that amount to the amount produced in the same calendar month in 2013.  

Beginning October 15, 2014, the monitoring report shall also estimate the gallons of 

water per person per day used by the residential customers it serves.  In its initial 

monitoring report, each urban water supplier shall state the number of persons it serves. 

 (e) To promote water conservation, each distributor of a public water supply, as 

defined in Water Code section 350, that is not an urban water supplier shall, within thirty 

(30) days, take one or more of the following actions: 

(1) Limit outdoor irrigation of ornamental landscapes or turf with potable water 

by the persons it serves to no more than two days per week; or 

(2) Implement another mandatory conservation measure or measures intended to 

achieve a comparable reduction in water consumption by the persons it serves relative to 

the amount consumed in 2013. 

 

Authority: Wat. Code, § 1058.5. 

References: Wat. Code, §§ 102, 104, 105; 350; 10617; 10632. 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
DATE: July 9, 2014 
 
TO: Board of Directors 
 
CC: Steve Wickstrum 
 General Manager 
 
FROM: Ron Merckling 
 Public Affairs/Resource Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  A Resolution Adopting the 2014 Integrated Regional Water Management 

Plan (IRWMP) Prepared by the Watersheds Coalition of Ventura County 
(WCVC), and Authorizing the General Manager, or Designee, to File a 
CEQA Notice of Exemption  

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Staff recommends that Board of Directors adopt the attached Resolution that: 
 

1. Adopts the 2014 Watersheds Coalition of Ventura County Integrated 
Regional Water Management Plan. 
 

2. Finds that the 2014 Watersheds Coalition of Ventura County Integrated 
Regional Water Management Plan is exempt from the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). 

 
3. Authorizes and directs the General Manager, or designee, to file a Notice of 

Exemption in accordance with provisions of CEQA. 
 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
None 
 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
In 2006, Casitas Municipal Water District Board of Directors adopted the first Watersheds 
Coalition of Ventura County (WCVC) Integrated Regional Water Management (IRWM) 
Plan that was prepared with funding through a Proposition 50 IRWM Planning grant and 
with local matching grant funds.  WCVC is the Regional Water Management Group 



Page 2 of 2 
 
recognized by the California Department of Water Resources (DWR) as the stakeholder 
group responsible for planning and implementation of the IRWM program. 
 
In November of 2006, the California electorate approved Proposition 84, the Safe Drinking 
Water, Water Quality and Supply, Flood Control, River and Coastal Protection Bond Act of 
2006 (Public Resource Code Section 75001 et seq.).  Proposition 84 contained new IRWM 
Plan Standards that included, but were not limited to, a requirement to document the 
group’s governance structure to ensure the IRWM Plan was updated and implemented 
regardless of the availability of grant funds; consideration of climate change impacts; and 
the development of measurable performance measures. 
 
Due to the changes in the IRWM Plan Standards and in order to be eligible for IRWM 
implementation funding, WCVC was required to update and adopt an IRWM Plan that met 
the new standards.  The County of Ventura, on behalf WCVC, was awarded $1 million in 
planning grant funds by DWR to prepare the updated Plan and related studies.  The 2014 
IRWM Plan is now complete and ready for adoption.  As required by the Plan Review 
Process outlined in the Guidelines, the WCVC IRWM Plan must be sent to DWR for their 
review to ensure consistency with the standards. 
 
Staff has reviewed the 2014 WCVC IRWM Plan, and has determined that the adoption of 
the IRWM Plan is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant 
to CEQA Guidelines Section 15262 because the Plan is a planning study which identifies 
potential projects, programs, and policies for possible future actions; and Sections 15306, 
15307, and 15308 because the Plan consists of basic data and information collection and 
includes possible actions, subject to future adoption and approval, which would protect 
natural resources and the environment. 
 
Staff recommends the Board of Directors adopt the 2014 WCVC Integrated Regional 
Water Management Plan, adopt the CEQA exemption findings through the attached 
Resolution, and authorize the General Manager, or designee, to file a CEQA Notice of 
Exemption. 
 
 
 
Exhibit 1: Resolution Adopting the 2014 WCVC IRWM Plan, Finding that the 

Plan is Exempt from CEQA, and Authorizing the General Manager, or 
Designee, to File a CEQA Notice of Exemption 

 



EXHIBIT 1 
 

      
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT ADOPTING THE 
2014 WATERSHEDS COALITION OF VENTURA COUNTY INTEGRATED 

REGIONAL WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN, FINDING THAT THE PLAN IS EXEMPT 
FROM CEQA, AND AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER, OR DESIGNEE, TO 

FILE A CEQA NOTICE OF EXEMPTION 
 

 
WHEREAS, in 2006, the Ventura County Board of Supervisors adopted the first 

Watersheds Coalition of Ventura County (WCVC) Integrated Regional Water 
Management (IRWM) Plan per the requirements of Proposition 50, the Water Security, 
Clean Drinking Water, Coastal and Beach Protection Act of 2002 (Water Code Section 
79500, et seq.); and 

 
WHEREAS, in November of 2006, the California electorate approved Proposition 

84, the Safe Drinking Water, Water Quality and Supply, Flood Control, River and 
Coastal Protection Bond Act of 2006 (Public Resource Code Section 75001 et seq.)  
that included funding for projects that were part of an Integrated Regional Water 
Management (IRWM) Plan; and 

 
WHEREAS, Proposition 84 included new IRWM Plan Standards that 

necessitated updating the 2006 WCVC IRWM Plan in order to be eligible to receive 
IRWM implementation grant funds; and 

 
WHEREAS, the 2014 WCVC IRWM Plan was developed through a 

comprehensive stakeholder process and provides for ongoing data gathering, planning, 
design, implementation, and evaluation through a long-term, dynamic, community-
based process; and 

 
WHEREAS, the widespread adoption of the 2014 WCVC IRWM Plan ensures 

multi-agency participation and future water management planning efforts in the Region; 
and  

 
 WHEREAS, staff has reviewed the 2014 WCVC IRWM Plan and has determined 
that the Plan is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant 
to CEQA Guidelines Section 15262 because the Plan is a planning study which 
identifies potential projects, programs, and policies for possible future actions; and 
Sections 15306, 15307, and 15308 because the Plan consists of basic data and 
information collection and includes possible actions, subject to future adoption and 
approval, which would protect natural resources and the environment; and 
 

WHEREAS, the General Manager, or designee, will prepare a Notice of 
Exemption for the 2014 WCVC IRWM Plan in accordance with CEQA and the County’s 
Procedures for the Implementation of CEQA; and 



EXHIBIT 1 
 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Casitas Municipal Water 

District hereby finds, determines, and declares as follows: 
   

1. All of the above recitals are true and correct. 
 

2. The Casitas Municipal Water District hereby adopts the 2014 WCVC 
IRWM Plan. 

 
3. The adoption of the 2014 WCVC IRWM Plan is hereby determined to be 

exempt from the requirements of CEQA pursuant to Sections 15262, 
15306, 15307, and 15308 of the State CEQA Guidelines. 

 
4. The General Manager, or designee, is hereby authorized and directed to 

file a Notice of Exemption in accordance with provisions of the California 
Environmental Quality Act. 

 





CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
Memorandum 

 
 
DATE:  August 7, 2014 
 
TO:  General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
 
FROM: Assistant to General Manager, Rebekah Vieira 
 
RE:  Membership in Employment Relations Consortium 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors review and adopt a resolution approving 
membership in the Liebert Cassidy Whitmore Employment Relations Consortium. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Liebert Cassidy Whitmore is a labor and employment law firm that represents public 
sector management and has created Employment Relations Consortiums (ERC) to 
bring groups of like agencies in a geographic area together for the purpose of securing 
quality employment relations training.   
 
The Ventura/Santa Barbara ERC has 23 members, including cities, and special districts 
and offers five full days of training each fiscal year.  A copy of the topics slated for the 
current fiscal year is attached.  Additionally, consortium services include complimentary 
telephone consultation with an attorney on matters relating to employment and labor law 
questions. 
 
The annual membership fee to participate in the Ventura/Santa Barbara ERC is $3,346. 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING MEMBERSHIP IN THE 
LIEBERT CASSIDY WHITMORE EMPLOYMENT RELATIONS CONSORTIUM 

 
 WHEREAS, Casitas desires to join the Liebert Cassidy Whitmore Employment 
Relations Consortium for Ventura and Santa Barbara to obtain quality employment 
relations training; and 
 
 WHEREAS, membership in the Employment Relations Consortium also provides 
for complimentary telephone consultation with an attorney on matters relating to 
employment and labor law; and 
  
 WHEREAS, the membership fee for fiscal year 2014-2015 is $3,346. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the 
Casitas Municipal Water District that membership in the Liebert Cassidy Whitmore 
Employment Relations Consortium is hereby approved for the Assistant to the General 
Manager/Clerk of the Board. 
 
 ADOPTED this 13th day of August, 2014 
 
 
 
      _______________________________ 
      President, Casitas Municipal Water District 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Secretary, Casitas Municipal Water District 
 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
Memorandum 

 
 
DATE:  August 7, 2014 
 
TO:  General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
 
FROM: Assistant to General Manager, Rebekah Vieira 
 
RE:  Review and Revision of Personnel Policies 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors approve engaging the services of Liebert 
Cassidy Whitmore to assist with the revision of the District’s Personnel Policies. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The District has identified the need to revise personnel policies and seeks to hire 
assistance with the process in an effort to efficiently and appropriately modify our 
policies.   
 
Liebert Cassidy Whitmore practices in the public sector representing numerous special 
districts in California in the area of employment law and labor relations and is well suited 
to provide the assistance and revision to our policies.  Their current estimate is up to 
$18,000.  Should additional time or work be needed outside the scope of work such as 
meeting to discuss policies or conferring on negotiations issues that would be an 
additional cost at their standard hourly rates, including travel time. 
 
 



 
  

6033 WEST CENTURY BOULEVARD, 5TH FLOOR 

LOS ANGELES, CALIFORNIA 90045 

T: 310.981.2000   F: 310.337.0837 

 

jjohnson@lcwlegal.com 

310.981.2000 

 

838080.4  LC300-008 Los Angeles | San Francisco | Fresno | San Diego 

www.lcwlegal.com 

 

 

July 22, 2014 

VIA EMAIL 

rvieira@casitaswater.com 

 

Ms. Rebekah Vieira 

Casitas Municipal Water District 

1055 Ventura Ave  

Oak View, CA 93022 

 

 

 

 

Re: Liebert Cassidy Whitmore Proposal to Review and Revise Personnel Policies  

and Regulations 

 

Dear Ms. Vieira 

Thank you for the opportunity to submit information on our availability and the 

estimated cost of reviewing and revising the District’s Personnel Policies and Regulations, as 

well as provide information about our qualifications. We would welcome the opportunity to 

provide this service to the District.  Below we have provided information on our firm 

background and qualifications as well as scope of services, timeline and a cost estimate.  

 

Firm Background and Qualifications 

Liebert Cassidy Whitmore practices in the public sector and represents hundreds of 

special districts throughout California in all aspects of labor relations and employment law.  

We have been involved in labor relations consultation, negotiations, training, administrative 

hearings, arbitrations and litigation since our inception in 1980. 

We are highly regarded by public agencies and our law firm competitors throughout the 

state because of our commitment to quality work and effective advocacy.  We have developed 

a reputation for expertise in all specialized public sector labor and employment law issues.  In 

the last fiscal year alone, we reviewed and revised the personnel policies and procedures of 

thirty-nine (39) clients. 

 

 



Ms. Rebekah Vieira 

Re:  Liebert Cassidy Whitmore Proposal to Review and Revise Personnel Rules  

and Regulations 

July 22, 2014 

Page 2 

838080.4  LC300-008 

 

Scope of Service 

We understand the District would like a review and update of its personnel policies and 

regulations in their entirety. We would welcome the opportunity to provide this service. We 

recommend that our usual arrangement of two attorneys be assigned to work together on this 

project.  

The audit that we are proposing would consist of: 

 

1. Reviewing existing Employee Policy Guidelines, Job Descriptions and related 

documents.   

2. Discussing with staff the areas of the District’s Employee Policies, Rules and 

Regulations requiring substantive revision. 

3. Preparing a revised draft of the Personnel Policy/Employee Handbook 

consistent with the District’s needs.  The draft will be in the format you require, 

such as a draft that has deletions indicated by strike outs and new language 

indicated by highlights.  The draft will either include annotations or a separate 

letter explaining major changes within 60 days of receiving feedback from the 

District. 

4. Incorporate any other appropriate changes suggested by the District.  

5. Provide a final draft of the Personnel Policies within 30 days of receipt of 

changes.   

We would also need to review any collective bargaining agreements, ordinances and/or 

resolutions that pertain to personnel matters. After an in-depth review of these documents, the 

majority of time would be spent revising the personnel policies.     

 

Cost Estimate 

Our hourly rates are $325 for partners and $190-$265 for associates. Based on the 

foregoing, our cost estimate for reviewing and revising the District’s personnel policies is 

$15,000 to $18,000, based on 55-58 hours of associate time and 10 hours of partner time. Any 

additional time outside of the scope of work, such as meeting to discuss the policies or 

conferring on negotiations issues would be an additional cost at our standard hourly rates, 

including travel time. 

We do not provide artificially low estimates in order to secure work. This represents 

our best estimate of what the audit will cost when done properly. We always strive to work as 

efficiently as possible with the intent of meeting or beating our estimate. 



Ms. Rebekah Vieira 

Re:  Liebert Cassidy Whitmore Proposal to Review and Revise Personnel Rules  

and Regulations 

July 22, 2014 

Page 3 

838080.4  LC300-008 

 

Thank you for the opportunity to present this proposal.  We truly appreciate you 

contacting us and welcome the opportunity to assist the District in the review and revision of 

your personnel policies and regulations.  If you have any questions, please contact me directly 

at (310) 981-2057 or jjohnson@lcwlegal.com.  

     

Very truly yours, 

LIEBERT CASSIDY WHITMORE 

  

 

JJ:cm 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
Memorandum 

 
 
DATE:  August 8, 2014 
 
TO:  General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
 
FROM: Assistant to General Manager, Rebekah Vieira 
 
RE: Engagement of an Executive Search Firm to Assist with the Recruitment 

of the Operations & Maintenance Manager 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors approve engaging the services of CPS 
HR Consulting to assist with the recruitment of the O & M Manager on the basis of their 
proposal content and previous working relationship with the District. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The Operations and Maintenance Manager is retiring at the end of October and it is the 
desire of the General Manager to engage the services of an executive search firm to 
perform the recruitment for this position. 
 
Proposals to perform the search were provided by the following companies: 
 
Firm   Fees   Est. Expenses Total  Time 
 
CPS HR   $13,000 Partial up to $6,500  $19,500 10-12 wks 
   $17,000 Full  up to $6,500  $23,500 14-16 wks 
 
Koff & Associates $14,000  up to $5,000  $19,000 12 wks 
 
LB Hayhurst  $15,000  $10,000  $25,000 13 wks 
 
Roberts Consulting $27,000  Included  $27,000 13 wks 
 
 



  
 

      
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Casitas Municipal Water District 
 

Executive Recruitment for 
Water Operations & Maintenance 
Manager 

August 5, 2014 

SUBMITTED BY: 
GERALYN GORSHING 
Director 
 
CPS HR Consulting 
241 Lathrop Way 
Sacramento, CA 95815 
P: 916-471-3373 
F: 916-561-8472 
ggorshing@cpshr.us 
Tax ID: 68-0067209   

www.cpshr.us  
 

PROPOSAL 

Your Path to Performance 



  
 

Page | i
 

 

August 5, 2014 

 
 
Rebekah Vieira 
Assistant to the General Manager/Clerk of the Board/HR Manager 
Casitas Municipal Water District 
1055 Ventura Ave 
Oak View, CA 93022 
 
Sent via email to: rvieira@casitaswater.com 

Subject: Executive Recruitment for Water Operations & Maintenance Manager 

Dear Ms. Vieira: 
 
Thank  you  for  the  opportunity  to  submit  a  proposal  to  assist  the  Casitas Municipal Water 
District  (the  “District”)  with  the  recruitment  of  a  new  Water  Operations  &  Maintenance 
Manager.  CPS HR Consulting (CPS HR) is extremely qualified to assist the District with this very 
important  recruitment as we have vast experience  in assisting public agencies and non‐profit 
organizations with executive search, screening, and placement. 
 
CPS  HR  offers  a  broad  spectrum  of  human  resource  services while  delivering  personalized, 
results‐oriented service, utilizing best practice methods of recruitment and selection strategies 
from our team of recruitment experts.  It is our commitment to work in partnership with your 
organization to a successful result.   
 
We possess a number of important strengths to assist the District in accomplishing the goals for 
this recruitment, including: 

 The  successful  completion  of  approximately  1,700  recruitments  for more  than  600 
clients.    We  have  extensive  experience  in  the  recruitment  of  all  types  of  local 
government,  executive  and  professional  staff,  including  council/board  appointed 
executives,  department  directors,  and  key  professional  and  management  positions.  
Although  our  client  list  covers  a  broad  range,  please  note  that  each  recruitment we 
conduct is uniquely designed to fit the needs of the individual client and is calculated to 
provide a strong, competitive pool of candidates. 

 We  have  extensive  experience  recruiting  for  various  executives  and managers  for  a 
variety of cities, counties, special districts and nonprofit entities.   We understand and 
appreciate  the  intricacies  of managing  the  executive  recruitment  for  an  organization 
and bring that expertise and knowledge to the recruitment process.   



  
 

Page | ii
 

 In‐depth  understanding  of  all  state  and  local  government  operations,  programs,  and 
services.    This  understanding  has  been  gained  as  consultants  to  local  governments 
throughout the United States. 

Again, thank you for the opportunity to be considered for this assignment.  We are prepared to 
make this process as smooth as possible for the Casitas Municipal Water District.   Should you 
have questions or comments about the information presented in this proposal, please contact 
our proposed project manager Frank Rojas at (916) 471‐3111 or frojas@cpshr.us. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Geralyn Gorshing 
Director 
  



  

 

      
Page | iii

 

Table of Contents   

Project Tasks ................................................................................................... 1 

Our Understanding of the Scope of Work ..................................................... 1 

Key Stakeholder Involvement ......................................................................... 1 

District’s Needs .................................................................................................. 1 

Assertive and Proactive Recruitment ............................................................ 1 

Detailed Outline ................................................................................................ 2 

Project Timeline ............................................................................................. 8 

Executive Recruiter ....................................................................................... 9 

References ................................................................................................... 11 

Professional Fee and Expenses ................................................................ 12 

Fees for Professional Services ........................................................................12 

Reimbursable Expenses ..................................................................................12 

Our Expertise ................................................................................................ 13 

Why Choose CPS HR Consulting .............................................................. 14 

Appendix A – Sample Brochure .............................................................. 15 

 



Proposal to the Casitas Municipal Water District  
Executive Recruitment for Water Operations & Maintenance Manager 

      
Page | 1

 

Project Tasks 
Our Understanding of the Scope of Work 
The  Casitas Municipal Water  District  is  interested  in  selecting  an  executive  search  firm  to 

provide  recruitment  services  for  a  new  Water  Operations  &  Maintenance  Manager.    We 

understand that this position will require a T‐5 certification and a D‐3 certification (or the ability 

to obtain both within one year of hire).   Dependent upon the needs of the District, CPS HR  is 

prepared  to work with  the District  to provide  full or partial executive search services  for  this 

position.  In the Cost section of this proposal, we have provided options for a full recruitment, 

as well as a partial recruitment. 

Key Stakeholder Involvement 
The General Manager must be intimately involved in the search for a new Water Operations & 

Maintenance Manager.   For  this reason, our approach assumes his direct participation  in key 

phases  of  the  search  process,  including  the  development  of  the  candidate  profile  and 

recruitment  strategies,  the  selection  of  final  candidates,  interviews  with  the  finalists,  and 

ultimately, the selection of a new Water Operations & Maintenance Manager.  Additionally, at 

the  discretion  of  the  General  Manager,  other  key  stakeholders  may  also  be  invited  to 

participate  in  focus  group  sessions,  or  round‐table  meetings  to  provide  input  for  the 

development of the candidate profile.   

District’s Needs 
A  critical  first  step  in a  successful executive  search  is  for  the General Manager  to define  the 

professional and personal qualities required of the Water Operations & Maintenance Manager.  

To  be  certain  this  occurs, we  have  developed  a  very  effective  process  that will  permit  the 

General Manager to clarify the preferred future direction for the District; the specific challenges 

the  District  is  likely  to  face  in  achieving  this  future  direction;  the  working  style  and 

organizational climate the General Manager wishes to establish with the Water Operations & 

Maintenance Manager;  and  ultimately,  the  professional  and  personal  qualities  that  will  be 

required of the Water Operations & Maintenance Manager. 

Assertive and Proactive Recruitment 
The best candidates are often not actively seeking a new position.   They may only consider a 

change once we present a more attractive career opportunity to them.   Yet, among potential 

applicants there are those who, though personally satisfied with their current situation, would 

rise  to  the professional challenge and apply  for  these positions.   Evoking  that sense of vision 



Proposal to the Casitas Municipal Water District  
Executive Recruitment for Water Operations & Maintenance Manager 

      
Page | 2

 

and opportunity  in qualified persons  is among  the responsibilities of CPS HR.   This  is why we 

take an aggressive approach in identifying and recruiting the best available candidates. 

 

Detailed Outline 

 

Our proposed executive search process is designed to provide the District with the full range of 

services  required  to  ensure  the  ultimate  selection  of  a  Water  Operations  &  Maintenance 

Manager who is uniquely suited to the District's needs.  Our process starts with Phase I, where 

our consultant will meet with the General Manager and other District stakeholders as desired 

by  the District,  to ascertain  the District’s needs and  ideal  candidate attributes,  to  target our 

search efforts and maximize candidate  fit with the District.   From there, Phase  II outlines the 

recruiting process, which is tailored to fit the District’s specific wants and needs, with targeted 

advertising,  combined  with  personal  contacts  with  qualified  individuals  from  our  database.  

Finally,  in Phase III, the selection process  is also customized for the District.   CPS HR will work 

with the General Manager to determine the process best suited to the Casitas Municipal Water 

District. 

Should the District opt for a partial recruitment, the end of Phase II will result in a summarized 
report  of  the  recruitment  process  and  a  list  of  recommended  candidates  for  further 
consideration by the District. 

   

•Develop 
Candidate 
Profile and 
Recruitment 
Strategy

Phase I

•Recruitment

Phase II

•Selection

Phase III



Proposal to the Casitas Municipal Water District  
Executive Recruitment for Water Operations & Maintenance Manager 

      
Page | 3

 

Phase I - Develop Candidate Profile and Recruitment Strategy 
Task 1 - Review and Finalize Executive Search Process and Schedule 

A critical first step in this engagement is a thorough review of the search process and schedule 

with  the  General Manager.    This will  ensure  that  the  District’s  needs  are met  in  the most 

complete manner possible.   

Task 2 - Additional Key Stakeholder Meetings 

As desired by the District, CPS HR is prepared to meet with any additional key stakeholders to 

obtain input in developing the ideal candidate profile and to assist CPS HR in understanding key 

issues  and  challenges  that will  face  a new Water Operations & Maintenance Manager.    The 

specific nature of the involvement process would be developed in consultation with the District.  

The results of the above activities will be summarized by CPS HR and provided to the District as 

an additional source of information for developing the candidate profile and selection criteria.   

Task 3 - Development of Candidate Profile and Recruitment Strategy 

This task will be accomplished during a workshop session  involving the General Manager and 

CPS HR.   It will result  in the  identification of the personal and professional attributes required 

for the position, and include the following activities: 

 The  General  Manager  will  identify  key  priorities  for  the  new  Water  Operations  & 

Maintenance Manager. 

 CPS  HR will  assist  the  General Manager  in  identifying  the  conditions  and  challenges 

likely to be encountered in achieving the priorities identified above. 

 The  General  Manager  will  describe  the  type  of  working  relationship  he  wishes  to 

establish with the Water Operations & Maintenance Manager. 

 CPS HR will assist the District  in generating  lists of specific competencies, experiences, 

and personal attributes needed by the new Water Operations & Maintenance Manager 

in light of the analyses conducted above. 

 CPS  HR  will  present  several  recruitment  and  selection  strategies  for  the  District’s 

consideration.  The District will choose the recruitment and selection process most likely 

to produce the intended results. 

Task 4 – Develop Recruitment Brochure and Place Advertisements 

Following the completion of the workshop session, CPS HR will work with a professional graphic 

artist to design a recruitment brochure and present it to the District for review prior to printing 

(examples  of  current  brochures  are  available  for  viewing  on  our  website  at 

www.cpshr.us/search, and we have provided a copy of a sample brochure  in Appendix A).    In 

addition, advertisements will be prepared and placed  for publication  in pertinent magazines, 



Proposal to the Casitas Municipal Water District  
Executive Recruitment for Water Operations & Maintenance Manager 

      
Page | 4

 

journals,  newsletters,  job  bulletins,  social  media,  and  websites  to  attract  candidates  on  a 

nationwide, regional, local, or targeted scale, depending on the preference of the District.   

CPS  HR  is  focused  on  reaching  a  diverse  candidate  pool  and  would  recommend 

publications/websites  that are  targeted  to minority and  female candidates.   We are proud of 

our  successful  record  of  assisting  our  clients  with  placing  over  170  minority  and  female 

candidates  in  executive  positions  over  the  past  five  years.    CPS HR will  specifically  research 

other  jurisdictions whose demographics mirror  those of  the Ventura County area and  target 

outreach  to  those  individuals.    In  addition  to  placing  ads  on  websites  aimed  at  minority 

candidates, we will  contact  leaders within  appropriate  associations  to  gain  their perspective 

and referrals of possible candidates. 

The  recruitment brochure will  also be  available on our website,  so  that  interested potential 

candidates  can  access  the  brochure  (a  link  to  the  brochure  is  listed  in  the  advertising).  

Additionally, we prepare an e‐mail distribution  list  that  is sent  to prospective candidates and 

referral  sources.    The  e‐mail will  have  a  direct  link  to  the  brochure  embodied  in  the  e‐mail 

message.   We  also  send  brochures  directly  to  prospective  candidates  and  referral  sources 

soliciting interest in the position. 

 

Phase II - Recruitment 
Task 1 - Identify and Contact Potential Candidates 

This very crucial  task will  include a variety of activities designed  to attract  the best available 

candidates.  In addition to the placement of advertisements  in the proposed publications, CPS 

HR will: 

 Contact  respected  and  experienced  industry  leaders  to  identify  outstanding  potential 

candidates on a referral basis.  CPS HR maintains a comprehensive, up to date database 

of such professionals; however, we do not rely solely upon our current database.   We 

also  conduct  specific  research  in  print,  internet  search  engines,  and  social media  to 

target  individuals  relevant  to your specific needs and expectations.   To ensure we are 

thorough  in our efforts, we will market  this position  to  the  appropriate  audiences  to 

garner  a  diverse  and  quality  pool  of  candidates.    These  individuals,  as well  as  other 

potential  candidates,  are  typically  contacted  very  soon  after  they  have  received  a 

recruitment brochure in order to maximize the impact of the multiple contacts. 

 Select top quality candidates for consideration from past recruitments. 

 Provide each potential candidate with a copy of the recruitment brochure. 

 Contact potential candidates to explain the career opportunity, answer questions, and 

encourage them to submit a resume.  Oftentimes this component necessitates multiple 



Proposal to the Casitas Municipal Water District  
Executive Recruitment for Water Operations & Maintenance Manager 

      
Page | 5

 

conversations  with  the  same  person  to  pique  their  interest  and  to  answer  their 

questions. 

As  a  consulting  firm  that  interacts  with  hundreds  of  public  sector  executives  during 

engagements, we have a cadre of individuals who we inform of recruitments, both to increase 

the visibility of the opening and to attract appropriate  individuals who fit the special needs of 

the  client.   Communication with  these professionals ensures  that  an  accurate picture of  the 

requirements of  the  job  is apparent and proliferated  throughout  their professional networks.  

The approach utilized by CPS HR employs the following techniques: 

 Communicating  to  candidates,  through  advertising  materials  and  verbally,  a  strong 

sense  of  the  purpose  and  strategy  of  the  District.    For  many  talented  individuals, 

understanding  these  aspects  is  one  of  the  key  motivators  to  compete  in  such  an 

environment. 

 Providing guidance and resources to candidates regarding the area’s cost of living, mean 

and median housing prices, higher education opportunities, K‐12 education information, 

and other aspects of interest to those who are considering a move to the area.  We have 

found  that potential  candidates  sometimes make  the decision not  to  apply based on 

rumored information, rather than facts and research.   

 Actively  seeking  individuals  who  are  highly  visible  in  the  field  –  widely  published, 

frequent  presenters  and/or  thought  leaders  –  who  are  seemingly  ready  for  the 

challenge.  These  highly  qualified  candidates  may  be  attracted  by  the  prospect  of 

collaboration with other District departments, providing exceptional  leadership  to  the 

Casitas Municipal Water District, or continuing  to ensure  the public confidence  in  the 

integrity of the District. 

Task 2 – Resume Review and Screening Interviews 

All resumes will be submitted directly to CPS HR for initial screening.  This screening process is 

specifically designed  to assess  the personal and professional attributes  the District  is  seeking 

and will include: 

 A  thorough  review  of  each  candidate's  resume,  and  if  applicable,  supplemental 

questionnaire responses, and other supporting materials. 

 Interviews with the candidates who appear to best meet the District’s needs.  This group 

typically  includes  approximately  10‐15  candidates.   CPS HR will  spend  extensive  time 

ascertaining each candidate’s long term career goals and reason(s) why the candidate is 

seeking  this  opportunity,  as well  as  gaining  a  solid  understanding  of  the  candidate’s 

technical competence and management philosophy.   We will also gather data on any 

other unique aspects specific to this recruitment based upon the candidate profile. 



Proposal to the Casitas Municipal Water District  
Executive Recruitment for Water Operations & Maintenance Manager 

      
Page | 6

 

 CPS  HR  will  conduct  internet  research  on  each  candidate  interviewed,  to  include 

newspaper articles and blog checks. 

Task 3 – General Manager Selects Finalists 

At the conclusion of the previous tasks, CPS HR will prepare a written report that summarizes 

the results of the recruitment processes and typically recommends five to eight candidates for 

further  consideration  by  the District.    This  report will  include  the  candidate  resumes  and  a 

profile  on  each  interviewee's  background.    CPS HR will meet with  the General Manager  to 

review  this  report  and  to  assist  the  District  in  selecting  a  group  of  finalists  for  further 

evaluation. 

 

Phase III – Selection 
(Phase III would not be included in a partial recruitment.) 

The selection of the best available candidate requires the use of tools specifically designed to 

evaluate  each  candidate  against  the  personal  and  professional  qualities  identified  by  the 

General Manager.   For this reason, we tailor our selection techniques to the District’s specific 

requirements.    In  addition,  we  also  assume  responsibility  for  administering  the  selection 

process for the District. 

Task 1 - Design Selection Process 

Based on the results of the meeting conducted in Phase I, CPS HR will design a selection process 

to be utilized by the District  in assessing the most qualified final candidates.   This process will 

typically  include  an  in‐depth  interview  with  each  candidate,  but  may  also  include  other 

selection  tools  such  as  an  oral  presentation,  preparation  of written materials  and  problem‐

solving  exercises.   CPS HR will meet with  the District  to  review  this process  and discuss  the 

District’s preferred approach in assessing the final candidates. 

Task 2 - Administer Selection Process 

CPS  HR  will  coordinate  all  aspects  of  the  selection  process  for  the  District.    This  includes 

contacting both  the  successful  and  unsuccessful  candidates,  preparing  appropriate materials 

such  as  interview questions; evaluation manuals; other  assessment exercises;  facilitating  the 

interviews; and assisting the District with deliberation of the results of the selection tool(s). 

Task 3 – Arrange Follow-up Interviews, Final Assessment Process, In-Depth 
Reference and Background Checks 

Following  the  completion of  the  selection process, CPS HR will be  available  to  complete  the 

following components: 



Proposal to the Casitas Municipal Water District  
Executive Recruitment for Water Operations & Maintenance Manager 

      
Page | 7

 

 Reference Checks:  the  in‐depth  reference checks are a comprehensive 360 evaluation 

process  whereby  we  speak  with  current  and  previous  supervisors,  peers  and  direct 

reports.    It  is  our  policy  to  not  contact  current  supervisors  until  a  job  offer  is made 

contingent upon that reference being successfully completed so as not to jeopardize the 

candidates’ current employment situation.   The candidates are requested to provide a 

minimum  of  six  reference  sources.    CPS  HR  is  able  to  ascertain  significant,  detailed 

information from reference sources due to our assurance and commitment to them that 

their comments remain confidential which  leads  to a willingness  to have an open and 

candid discussion with CPS HR.  A written summary of the reference checks is provided 

to the District. 

 Background Checks: we will arrange  for a background  records check of an applicant’s 

driving  record,  criminal  and  civil  court,  and  credit  history,  education  verification, 

newspaper article research, and other sensitive items. 

Value-Added Customer Service 
Throughout the outreach and screening process, we are committed to keeping the District fully 

informed of our progress.  We will collaborate with you to provide updates on the status of the 

recruitment via your preferred method of communication (phone conference, email, etc.).    In 

addition, during each phase in the process, we are corresponding with candidates and advising 

them of their status.  We place a high level of importance on customer service and responding 

in a  timely manner  to all client and candidate  inquiries.   Our previous clients and candidates 

have  expressed  a  sincere  appreciation  for  our  level  of  service  and  responsiveness  to  the 

management of  the  recruitment process.   As a  result, we have many  long  term  relationships 

with clients that have resulted in the opportunity to assist them with multiple recruitments. 

Additionally,  our  follow‐up  extends  once  you  have  selected  the  new  Water  Operations  & 

Maintenance Manager.   We will contact both  the General Manager and  the newly appointed 

Water Operations & Maintenance Manager within six months of appointment to ascertain if an 

effective transition has occurred. 

   



Proposal to the Casitas Municipal Water District  
Executive Recruitment for Water Operations & Maintenance Manager 

      
Page | 8

 

Project Timeline 
CPS HR is prepared to begin work upon receipt of a fully‐executed contractual agreement.  We 

can complete all search activities  for a  full  recruitment up  to and  including  the selection of a 

new Water Operations/Maintenance Manager in 14 to 16 weeks.  A partial recruitment can be 

completed  within  10‐12  weeks.  The  precise  schedule  will  depend  on  the  placement  of 

advertising  in  the appropriate professional  journals, and  the ability  to schedule, as quickly as 

possible, the initial meeting.  A proposed schedule of major milestones is presented below. 

 

Task Name  Month 1  Month 2  Month 3  Month 4 

Weeks  1  2  3  4  5  6  7  8  9  10  11  12  13  14  15  16 

Initial Meeting/Candidate 
Profile  

       

Draft Brochure                     

Brochure Approved/Printed 
Place Ads  

                        

Aggressive Recruiting                         

Final Filing Date                           

Preliminary Screening                

Present Leading Candidates 
to the District 

                       

District Interviews           

Reference/Background 
Checks  

                       

Appointment                                      

Weeks  1  2  3  4  5  6  7  8  9  10  11   12  13  14  15  16 

 

  



Proposal to the Casitas Municipal Water District  
Executive Recruitment for Water Operations & Maintenance Manager 

      
Page | 9

 

Executive Recruiter 
CPS HR Consulting has uniquely qualified executive  recruiters  to assist  the District.   Our  staff 

members possess extensive recruiting experience and a direct, in‐depth understanding of local 

government.  Each of our recruiters routinely serves as an engagement or project manager and 

is personally involved in every aspect of the executive search process.  For this engagement, we 

have selected Mr. Frank Rojas to serve as both the project manager and your senior executive 

recruiter.  His resume is presented below. 

Frank Rojas 
 
Profile 
Frank Rojas is an Executive Recruiter with CPS HR Consulting.  Frank brings more than 30 years 

of  recruiting  experience  from  the  highly  competitive  direct  placement  and  contract  labor 

industries  as well  the  corporate  environment.   Mr.  Rojas  has  significant  experience  placing 

corporate  leaders,  executive,  professional,  and  technical  staff  including  past  and  present 

Transportation Directors, Managers and Supervisors for PRIDE Industries’ Fleet, Transportation 

and  ParaTransit  Departments  in  support  of  government  and  other  non‐profit  organizations 

nationally  and  statewide;  government  sector,  aerospace,  architectural  and  engineering, 

information  technology, petroleum and  chemical, energy, power,  civil/structural, and private 

industry.  Recent successful efforts include positions such as Executive Director, Vice President 

of Risk, Corporate and Government Controllers, General  In‐House Counsel and Director‐level 

hires  for  Fleet,  Environmental,  Regulatory  Compliance,  Training,  Division/Site  General 

Managers and Human Resources. Mr. Rojas has established a strong client and customer base 

through trust, effective recruiting, relationship building, and teamwork. 

Mr. Rojas began his career in Contract Labor and over the next 20+ years launched seven start‐

up offices  in  several  states and  locations providing direct placement and contract  support  to 

hundreds of clients in virtually all industries and levels of talent.  He continued his career in the 

non‐profit  environment managing  and  building  talent  acquisition  support  during  significant 

growth  periods.   Having  been  a  speaker  at  several  networking  and  career  coaching  venues, 

Frank believes in utilizing traditional recruiting methodology with social media.  He was named 

in the top 1% viewed profiles on LinkedIn. 

Employment History 

 Senior Executive Recruiter, CPS HR Consulting 

 Employment Director and Senior Recruiter, PRIDE Industries 

 Corporate Recruiter, EMF Broadcasting 

 Branch Manager & Acting Vice President, Fastek Technical Services 

 



Proposal to the Casitas Municipal Water District  
Executive Recruitment for Water Operations & Maintenance Manager 

      
Page | 10

 

Professional Experience 

 Managed  and  lead  recruiting  efforts  including  client  interface  to  define  and  write 

position  descriptions,  profiles  and  goals.  Responsible  for  creating  marketing  plans, 

screening and selection strategies, conducting  interviews and participating  in final hire 

and post hire activities including reference and background checks.  

 Assisted  in  salary  evaluation  and  competitive  comparisons.  This  includes  candidate 

negotiations,  travel  and  relocation  (if  appropriate),  benefits  and  confirmation  and 

acceptance of any requirements prior to the submittal process and acceptance of offer.  

 Managed in‐house staff to ensure adherence of company policies and legal compliance.  

Developed  and  maintained  positive,  team‐building  methodologies  that  increased 

productivity,  created  a  positive,  productive  staff  and  maintain  cooperativeness  and 

trust.  

 Recruited and identified senior‐level management for several federal locations including 

General Managers, Assistant General Managers, HR Director,  Site Controllers, Quality 

Managers, T‐4 Water and Environmental Directors and  other Departmental Leadership 

at Fort Bliss, El Paso; Fort Polk, Louisiana; Joint Base McGuire‐Dix‐Lakehurst, New Jersey; 

Los  Angeles  Air  Force  Base,  Cape  Canaveral,  Florida,  and  the  Lawrence  Livermore 

National Laboratory.   

 Set up  staff procedures  and office  functions; negotiated  service  agreements, ensured 

EEO, safety/OSHA, quality and all local, state, and federal compliance policies. Migrated 

and implemented several Applicant Tracking Systems including participation as Systems 

Administrator.  

 Initiated  effort  to  define  the mission  and  business  plans  of  expanding  organizations. 

Developed road maps to build client base, relevant labor pools, and resources to sustain 

growth for the entire enterprise. Started corporate recruiting department and  initiated 

recruiting  strategies,  hiring  processes,  retention,  and  integrated  cost‐effective 

marketing tools. 

 Hired  and motivated  in‐house  talent  and  create  cross‐functional  business/sales  and 

recruiting  process  allowing  for  growth,  skills  development,  and  achievement  to meet 

customer needs and provide for an effective team‐oriented environment. 

Education 

 B.A. Political Science, University of California at Berkeley, Berkeley, CA 

 

 

 

  



Proposal to the Casitas Municipal Water District  
Executive Recruitment for Water Operations & Maintenance Manager 

      
Page | 11

 

References 
CPS HR Consulting has excellent references and we encourage you to contact them.   
 

CLIENT  POSITION  CONTACT 

Citrus Heights Water 
District 
 

Assistant General Manager 
(2014) 

Bob Churchill 
General Manager 

916‐725‐6873 
rchurch@chwd.org 

 

Florin Resource 
Conservation District 
(Elk Grove Water) 
 

General Manager (2011)  Barrie Lightfoot 
Board Chair 

916‐685‐3556 
barrielightfoot@comcast.net 

or 
Stefani Phillips 

Human Resources Manager 
916‐685‐3556 

Stefani@egwd.org 
 

San Jose, CA, City of 
 

Division Manager of 
Pavement Services (2014) 
 
Division Manager of Sewer 
and Storm Services (2014) 
 

Sandra Castellano 
HR Manager, Department of 

Transportation 
408‐535‐3850 

Sandra.castellano@sanjoseca.gov 
 

San Jose, CA, City of 
 

Operations Division Manager‐
Regional Wastewater Facility 
(2013) 

Joanna De Sa 
Deputy Director of Environmental 

Services 
408‐635‐2039 

Joanna.desa@sanjoseca.gov 
or 

Marcela Bolanos 
Sr. Analyst‐Human Resources 

408‐975‐1449 
Marcela.bolanos@sanjoseca.gov 

 

Monterey Regional 
Water Pollution 
Control Agency 

Deputy General Manager 
(2014) 

Leara Sampson, HR Administrator 
831‐645‐4650 

leara@mrwpca.com 
 

  



Proposal to the Casitas Municipal Water District  
Executive Recruitment for Water Operations & Maintenance Manager 

      
Page | 12

 

CPS HR Consulting 
Two‐Year Guarantee 

(Full Recruitment Only) 
 

If the candidate selected 
and appointed by the 
District, as a result of a 
full executive 
recruitment, terminates 
employment for any 
reason before the 
completion of the first 
two years of service, CPS 
HR will provide the 
District with whatever 
professional services are 
required to appoint a 
replacement.  
Professional consulting 
services will be provided 
at no cost.  The District 
would be responsible 
only for reimbursable 
expenses.  The same 
applies if the initial 
recruitment efforts do 
not result in a successful 
appointment. 

Professional Fee and Expenses 
Fees for Professional Services 
The  base  professional  fee  for  this  executive  recruitment 

service as outlined is $17,000.  Our professional fee covers all 

CPS HR  services  associated with  Phases  I,  II,  and  III  of  the 

recruitment process, including the necessary field visits (up to 

three)  to  develop  the  candidate  profile  and  recruitment 

strategy, assist  the District  in  finalist selection, and  facilitate 

candidate interviews with the District.   

Should the District desire a partial recruitment (Phases  I and 
II, as outlined), the professional fee would be $13,000. 

Reimbursable Expenses 
Actual  out‐of‐pocket  expenses  for  such  items  as  consultant 

travel,  advertising,  marketing,  printing/copying,  and 

postage/delivery charges are  reimbursable at cost.   There  is 

no mark‐up on expenses and we will work proactively with 

the  District  to  ensure  that  the  dollars  being  spent  for 

expenses  are  in  keeping  with  the  District’s  expectations.  

Travel expenses for candidates who are invited forward in the 

interview  process  are  not  included  under  our  reimbursable 

range.    The  listed  reimbursable  expenses  range  includes  a 

background check on the selected finalist candidate. 

Estimated Range ............................................ $5,000 ‐ $6,500 

Approximate recruitment costs include: 

 Brochure Design and Printing ($1,000) 
 Advertising ($2,500) 
 Consultant travel  

 Full  Recruitment:  Approximate  travel  cost  is  based  on  three  trips  with  one 
overnight ‐ $1,850 

 Partial Recruitment: Approximate travel cost is based on two trips ‐ $1,100 
 Background check (one candidate ‐ $400) 
 Other recruitment expenses (supplies, shipping, etc. ‐ $200) 

Professional fees and reimbursable expenses would be billed and paid monthly. 

  



Proposal to the Casitas Municipal Water District  
Executive Recruitment for Water Operations & Maintenance Manager 

      
Page | 13

 

Our Expertise 
CPS  HR  Consulting  has  extensive  experience  in  executive  recruitment  services.    Our  Joint 

Powers Authority Charter specifies that we provide human resources consulting services only to 

other public agencies or non‐profit organizations.   Our wealth of  recruitment experience has 

been  gained  through more  than  25  years  of  placing  top  and mid‐level  executives  in  public 

agencies throughout the United States. 

Our approach to this process is effective for a number of reasons which include: 

 Our expert recruiting staff 

Our  Executive  Recruiters  possess  a  high  level  of  expertise  in  recruiting  and  placing 

qualified managers, directors, and executive professionals.   We have a retention rate 

that averages more  than  five  (5) years.   Our staff of experts  includes an exceptional 

group of full‐time employees as well as a full complement of subject matter experts, 

intermittent, and part‐time employees with a wide variety of public and private sector 

experience.   This allows CPS HR  to precisely match  the needs of  the client with CPS 

HR’s expertise and provide a wide range of services. 

 High level of client satisfaction 

Our Client Satisfaction rating averages 4.6 on a scale of 5.  A client satisfaction survey 

is sent at the end of every engagement requesting feedback on the quality of our staff, 

our  deliverables,  and  the  overall  consulting  relationship.    The  answers  to  these 

questions are then compiled and analyzed to identify client satisfaction ratings which 

are used as a factor within the CPS HR performance management system.  The ratings 

are weighted very highly  in each employee’s  individual performance plan and annual 

performance rating to ensure CPS HR continues to deliver on the high  level of client 

satisfaction our clients have a right to expect from us.  

 We are a public agency 

As a public agency ourselves, we understand the challenges and issues you face.  We 

share a common perspective with our clients; we understand how to work with and 

within  government.    Our  consultants  are  drawn  from  public  and  private  sector 

organizations, and employ strategy,  innovation, and flexibility to find candidates who 

can work well in such a critical position for the District.  We work collaboratively with 

you to generate creative and practical solutions.   This understanding of public sector 

culture and policy sets CPS HR uniquely apart from our competitors.  

 



Proposal to the Casitas Municipal Water District  
Executive Recruitment for Water Operations & Maintenance Manager 

      
Page | 14

 

Why Choose CPS HR Consulting 
We believe the advantages of using our expertise 
include: 
 Our commitment to, and expertise with, public agencies 

 Our  aggressive  outreach  to  qualified  individuals  who  may  not  be  seeking  new 

employment 

 Our ability to customize our process to fit your needs 

 Our extensive experience  in recruiting executive  level professionals for public agencies 

across the United States 

 Our growing list of returning clients who seek our services for multiple engagements 

 Our proven ability to recruit and place minority and female candidates 

 The clients and candidates who repeatedly compliment us on our timely and  frequent 

communication and feedback 

 Our ability to facilitate discussions and garner consensus with groups, including councils 

and boards 

Why select CPS HR for this Important Effort 
 We conduct a detailed needs assessment to  identify 1) future organizational direction; 

2) challenges facing the position; 3) the working style and organizational climate; and 4) 

required  core  and  job  specific  competencies  as  well  as  personal  and  professional 

characteristics required 

 CPS HR has a database of candidates for many jobs and an extensive network of external 

resources to leverage for executive‐level positions 

 We  utilize  our  vast  pool  of  public  and  nonprofit  resources  and  contacts  to  deliver  a 

strong pool of competitive candidates to the District who will be well prepared to assist 

the District in the accomplishment of its specific mission and goals 

 CPS HR  recognizes  that  the  very best  candidates  for  some  types of positions  are not 

typically  looking for a job and, therefore, our recruitment team takes a very aggressive 

approach to identifying and recruiting such candidates 

 We encourage applicant diversity and  incorporate a variety of activities  to attract  the 

best available candidates 

 The  combination of CPS HR’s  seasoned  recruitment management and highly qualified 

staff enable us to reliably deliver successful results on time and on budget 

 
Thank  you  for  reviewing  our  proposal.   We  would  be  pleased  to  partner  with  the  Casitas 
Municipal Water District  in this  important endeavor as we are committed to providing quality, 
expert solutions to help you achieve your goals.    



Proposal to the Casitas Municipal Water District  
Executive Recruitment for Water Operations & Maintenance Manager 

      
Page | 15

 

Appendix A – Sample Brochure 
   



Proposal to the Casitas Municipal Water District  
Executive Recruitment for Water Operations & Maintenance Manager 

      
Page | 16

 

 

 



Proposal to the Casitas Municipal Water District  
Executive Recruitment for Water Operations & Maintenance Manager 

      
Page | 17

 

 

 



Proposal to the Casitas Municipal Water District  
Executive Recruitment for Water Operations & Maintenance Manager 

      
Page | 18

 

 

 



Proposal to the Casitas Municipal Water District  
Executive Recruitment for Water Operations & Maintenance Manager 

      
Page | 19

 

 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

MINUTES 
Water Resources Committee 

 
DATE:   July 21, 2014 
TO:        Board of Directors 
FROM:   General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
Re:   Committee Meeting of July 21, 2014 
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report. 
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW: 

    
1. Roll Call.    

Director Pete Kaiser and Director Russ Baggerly  
 General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
 Public Affairs/Resource Manager, Ron Merckling 
 Public:  Rae Amery 
  

2. Public comments.   
Rae Amery expressed interest by the Green Coalition regarding drought assistance and locating grants 
for community outreach. 
 

3. Board/Management comments. 
Director Baggerly brought forward the idea of “slow, sink it, store it” for the community to consider in 
their outreach effort. 
  

4. Discussion concerning the State Water Resources Control Board Resolution No. 2014-0038, To 
Adopt an Emergency Regulation for Statewide Urban Water Conservation. 
The Committee discussed how the district fits under the State’s Resolution and reviewed the district’s 
Water Waste Prohibition Regulation, Resolution No. 08-09.  The term of the State’s action is 270 days.  
While the regulation meets the State’s requirements, the Committee discussed various improvements 
that should be considered and brought forward to the Board as an ordinance.  
 
The State’s action calls for a reduction in the number of outdoor irrigation days, limiting urban irrigation 
to two days per week (some agencies are reducing to three days per week), and the State is using the 
monthly urban water deliveries during 2013 as the water demand reduction benchmark for 2014 and 
2015.  A goal of a 20 percent reduction was called for by Governor Brown’s proclamation.  It was noted 
that there has been a 15% reduction in May 2014 from that of May 2013 residential use.  
 
The Committee discussed methods to provide public information, methods for the public to report water 
waste and the district’s response to these reports.  Staff recommended a separate phone line, use of 
web-based reporting of waste, the use of hang tags to inform of a first warning of water waste, how 
water waste responses will be prioritized in conjunction with scheduled conservation work, and the 
possible need for temporary personnel if water waste complaints escalate.  Staff also discussed limiting 
direct responses to direct customers of the district and referring other water complaints to the 
appropriate water agency. 
 
The Committee suggested that the District’s Leak Relief Program be suspended during the duration of 
the State’s declared water shortage emergency.  This would be referred to the finance committee for 

 1 



further review. 
 
5. Update on Water Shortage Contingency Plan. 

The Committee was updated on the progress of the plan.  Additional planning and action is to occur 
with the accounting process to address the allocation billing. 

 
6. Update on Water Quality Status. 

The Committee was informed that the level of algae bloom is not having an impact on water treatment 
or taste/odor.  Staff had received the aquatics pesticide permit from the State, and would treat the lake 
for algae if found to be necessary.  
 

 2 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

MINUTES 
Recreation Committee 

 
DATE:   August 8, 2014 
TO:        Board of Directors 
FROM:   General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
Re:   Committee Meeting of August 4, 2014 
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report. 
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW: 

    
1. Roll Call.    

Director Bill Hicks and Director Jim Word  
 General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
 Park Services Manager, Carol Belser 
 Park Servicers Officer IV, Suzi Taylor 
 Public:  Gary Wolfe, Casitas Marina  
   Dee Bennett, Lake Casitas Rowing Club 
  

2. Public comments.   
Dee Bennett asked for clarification on the front gate entry during the period of the proposed project.  
Suzi Taylor offered the clarification that the entry will be directly adjacent to the existing front gate. 
 

3. Board/Management comments. 
Director Hicks commented on his observations while at the Water Park, positive impression of the 
Water Park operations. 
 
Carol Belser announced that the Mission Judah group has cancelled its Labor Day weekend event at 
Lake Casitas and that reservations will be made available to the general public for the cancelled area. 
 
The General Manager stated that 30 years ago the district was involved with the 1984 Olympics at Lake 
Casitas, and that the Ojai Museum was hosting an event on August 10th at 4:30 PM to revisit the 
Olympics at Lake Casitas.  Director Hicks stated that this should be known by other Board members 
and public, and should be posted on the Casitas website. 
  

4. Discussion regarding User Fees. 
Carol Belser presented that staff will prepare a comparative fee evaluation and present to Committee for 
a consideration of any change in current fees.  Carol Belser pointed out that with the costs for labor at 
the park are rising and she is planning for additional staffing at the park.  There is a need to review user 
fees and be competitive with other recreational resources.  Director Word asked about the other parks 
that are surveyed for the comparison.  Carol Belser responded that a comparative will be prepared. 

 
5. Update on the installation of the Boathouse. 

Carol Belser reported that the boathouse has been completed and moved from Coyote Ramp to Santa 
Ana Ramp.  The project is substantially complete.    

 
6. Discussion of low lake levels and recreational uses. 

There is now a boom across the lake that connects the mainland to the island, water is approximately 
 1 



two feet deep over the connecting land. As the lake level drops, the public will tend to enter into areas 
that were once under water.  The Committee reviewed a 1964 picture of the lake bottom to understand 
the re-emerging land features.  Any proposal to perform alternative recreational activities on the re-
emerging land will be brought to the Committee for consideration. 
 

7. Review of Incidents and Comments. 
Suzi Taylor read from her list of various incidents at Lake Casitas in July.  Incidents of note that were 
responded to by Ventura County Sheriff, or Animal Control, include a domestic violence, animal cruelty 
(dogs in enclosed car during heat of day), a report of shots fired near the eagle nesting area (no 
conclusive findings) and one burglary.  Staff responded additionally to several burns from campfires, the 
eviction of one group of under-aged alcohol consumers, and the eviction of one group engaged in the 
use hallucinogenic drugs. 

 2 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
LAKE CASITAS RECREATION AREA 

 
DATE:  August 5, 2014  
 
TO:  Steve Wickstrum, General Manager 
 
FROM: Carol Belser, Park Services Manager 
   
SUBJECT: Recreation Area Monthly Report for June 2014 
 
Visitation Numbers 
The following is a comparison of visitations* for June 2014:   
 

 June 2014 June 2013 May 2014 
Visitor Days 61,516 71,852 54,048 
Camps 5,752 7,298 4,661 
Cars 15,379 17,963 13,512 
Boats 219 343 284 
Kayaks & Canoes 3 7 6 

 
Fiscal Year to Date Visitation 

2012/2013 632,400 
2013/2014 596,917 
% Change -5.611 

 
*The formulas for calculating the above attendance figures derived from the daily cash reports are as follows:   
Visitor Days = Daily vehicles + 30 minute passes X 3 + café passes + attendance at special events + annual vehicle decals + replacement decals + campsites 
occupied +extra vehicles X 4 
Camps = Campsites occupied + extra vehicles 
Cars = Daily vehicles + 30 minute passes X 3 + café passes + attendance at special events + annual vehicle decals + replacement decals + campsites 
occupied + extra vehicles 
Boats = Daily boats + overnight boats + annual decals + replacement decals 
Kayaks & Canoes = Daily kayaks and canoes + overnight kayaks and canoes + annual kayaks and canoes 
 

Boating  
There were 8 cables sold for new inspections, 5 vessels were re-inspected and a total of 425 vessels 
were retagged. 4 vessels failed the first inspection in June 2014. 
 
Night fishing from shore was held June 12, 13 and 14. 
 
Operations 
The Ojai Rotary Club of Ojai West Foundation held their 29th annual wine festival in the event area on 
June 8 with approximately 2,517 patrons in attendance. The movie Bolt was screened with 
approximately 50 participants, Astronomy Night held June 7th and 21st had 25 and 10 participants 
respectively, the annual carp rodeo was held on June 28 with 11 participants, and a Disc Golf 
Tournament for the deaf was held June 27-29 with 57 competitors.  
 
 
 
 
 

1 



Incidents  
Incidents in the Recreation Area for the month of June 2014 that required assistance from outside 
agencies included: a near drowning, a head injury of a child, motorcycle incident on Santa Ana Road 
where Sheriff requested assistance for PSO staff and water quality was not compromised, an elderly 
person’s injury, three separate incidents involving registered sex offenders resulting in removal from 
the Recreation Area, a domestic dispute including a suspected sexual assault to a 17 year old girl, 
possible firearm discharge, a report from a customer of “attempted murder” who then was determined 
by Sheriff as mentally unstable and an animal cruelty issue (dogs locked in parked car - survived).  

Revenue Reporting 
The unaudited figures below illustrate all Lake Casitas Recreation Area’s revenue collected in the 
respective month (operations, concessions, Water Adventure, etc.) per the District’s Financial 
Summary generated by the Finance Manager.    
 

LCRA TOTAL REVENUE 

$0.00

$100,000.00

$200,000.00

$300,000.00

$400,000.00

$500,000.00

$600,000.00

$700,000.00

July Sept Nov Jan Mar May

FY 13/14
FY 12/13

 
   

 
 

2 









Consumption Report

Water Sales FY 2014-2015 (Acre-Feet)         Month to Date

2014 / 2015 2013 / 2014

Classification Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Total Total

AD Ag-Domestic 391 391 5320

AG Ag 341 341 4065

C Commercial 91 91 724

DI Interdepartmental 18 18 119

F fire 0 0 1

I Industrial 1 1 22

OT Other 27 27 255

R Residential 212 212 1738

RS - P Resale Pumped 68 68 1182

RS - G Resale Gravity 548 548 5614

TE Temporary 2 2 55

Total 1699 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,699 19,093

Total 2013/2014 2014 1910 2301 2122 1951 1437 1145 1713 1022 765 1003 1710 N/A 19093



Casitas Municipal Water District

CFD No. 2013-1 (Ojai) - Monthly Cost Analysis 

2014/2015

08/06/2014

Services Legal Labor Other Total

& Suplies Fees Expense Services Expenses

2011 / 2012 -289.50 42,560.00 11,098.37 0.00 53,368.87

2012 / 2013 831.82 223,462.77 14,836.68 0.00 239,131.27

2013 / 2014 29.89 91,878.06 3,835.65 0.00 95,743.60

July 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

August 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

September 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

October 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

November 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

December 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

January 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Feburary 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

March 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

April 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

May 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

June 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Cost YTD 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Project Cost 572.21 357,900.83 29,770.70 0.00 388,243.74

Prepared by dcollin 08/07/2014 Page 1



   CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

TREASURER'S MONTHLY REPORT OF INVESTMENTS

08/07/14

 

Type of Date of Adjusted Current Rate of Date of % of Days to

Invest Institution CUSIP Maturity Cost Mkt Value Interest Deposit Portfolio Maturity

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 313379EE5 06/14/2019 $1,381,776 $1,340,105 1.625% 10/03/2012 9.12% 1747

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 313379RN1 12/27/2024 $978,364 $951,290 3.027% 06/18/2014 6.47% 3740

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 31338OA98 08/14/2024 $126,966 $126,263 2.500% 07/03/2014 0.86% 3607

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 31338OS73 10/11/2022 $699,720 $685,496 2.430% 08/11/2014 4.66% 2944

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XFKF2 06/11/2021 $710,717 $676,424 5.625% 01/16/2013 4.60% 2464

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XLWN1 09/12/2014 $934,388 $934,678 5.250% 04/01/2013 6.36% 35

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XWNB10 06/12/2015 $705,255 $715,687 2.875% 07/01/2010 4.87% 305

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3134A4VG60 11/17/2015 $725,302 $740,663 4.750% 07/19/2010 5.04% 460

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3134G34WJ 08/28/2014 $997,087 $997,169 0.375% 04/01/2013 6.78% 21

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3134G43A4 10/30/2024 $849,441 $825,386 2.500% 07/03/2014 5.61% 3683

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3135G0ES80 11/15/2016 $689,742 $693,785 1.375% 03/12/2012 4.72% 818

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EABA60 11/17/2017 $1,119,800 $1,129,910 5.125% 01/03/2012 7.69% 1180

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EADB2 01/13/2022 $208,770 $199,946 2.375% 02/11/2013 1.36% 2676

*TB Federal Natl MTG Assn 31398AYY20 09/16/2014 $701,011 $702,156 3.000% 07/01/2010 4.78% 39

*TB US Treasury Inflation Index NTS 912828JE10 07/15/2018 $1,151,565 $1,195,122 1.375% 07/06/2010 8.13% 1418

*TB US Treasury Notes 912828LZ10 11/30/2014 $701,317 $704,536 2.125% 07/01/2010 4.79% 113

*TB US Treasury Inflation Index NTS 912828MF40 01/15/2020 $1,136,274 $1,198,654 1.375% 07/01/2010 8.15% 1958

*TB US Treasury Bond 912828WE6 11/15/2023 $769,755 $786,336 2.613% 12/13/2013 5.35% 3338

Accrued Interest $96,679

Total in Gov't Sec. (11-00-1055-00&1065) $14,587,248 $14,700,285 80.30%

*CD cit Salt Lake City UT - CD 12/18/2023 $245,000 $242,949 3.30%

*CD Discover BK Greenwood DE - CD 01/16/2024 $239,000 $235,226 3.20%

*CD GE Capital - CD Draper, UT 09/27/2023 $245,000 $242,866 3.25%

*CD GE Capital - CD Salt Lake City, UT 09/27/2023 $245,000 $240,955 3.15%

*CD Goldman Sachs  - CD New York, NY 10/30/2023 $224,000 $223,646 3.25%

*CD Toyota Financial Services - CD -Henderson NV 12/20/2023 $245,000 $243,087 3.30%

Total Certificates of Deposit: (11.13506) $1,443,000 $1,428,729 7.80%

** LAIF as of:  (11-00-1050-00) N/A $446 $446 0.23% Estimated 0.00%

*** COVI as of: (11-00-1060-00) N/A $2,178,040 $2,178,040 0.35% Estimated 11.90%

TOTAL FUNDS INVESTED $18,208,734 $18,307,500 100.00%

Total Funds Invested last report $18,211,332 $18,299,237

Total Funds Invested 1 Yr. Ago $18,195,394 $18,367,013

**** CASH IN BANK (11-00-1000-00) EST. $4,242,290 $4,242,290

CASH IN Western Asset Money Market $5,444 $5,444 0.01%

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS $22,456,469 $22,555,235

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS 1 YR AGO $19,428,842 $19,600,460

*CD CD - Certificate of Deposit

*TB TB - Federal Treasury Bonds or Bills 

** Local Agency Investment Fund 

*** County of Ventura Investment Fund

Estimated interest rate, actual not due at present time.

**** Cash in bank

No investments were made pursuant to subdivision (i) of Section 53601, Section 53601.1 

and subdivision (i) Section 53635 of the Government Code.

All investments were made in accordance with the Treasurer's annual statement of 

investment policy.


	07-23-14 Min
	Minutes of the Casitas Municipal Water District
	Board Meeting Held
	July 23, 2014

	Bill list
	SOD Contract Memo 07 31 2014 (1)
	CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
	Memorandum
	FROM:  General Manager, Steve Wickstrum
	URECOMMENDATION:
	In the 1980’s and 1990’s, the Bureau of Reclamation (Reclamation) performed several investigations of Casitas Dam to evaluate the risks that could be associated with the structural performance of Casitas Dam during an extreme seismic event.  The Burea...
	As described in Exhibit A of the Contract, the final total cost for the modification project is $35,024,108.37.  The provisions of the SOD Act require that fifteen (15) percent of the modification cost incurred to correct the safety problems, includin...
	The SOD Act provides for a repayment of reimbursable costs during a maximum period of fifty years from the date of project completion.  For this contract, the term is 37 years that begins with a February 2014 payment.  The contract also provides for r...
	Since 2002, Reclamation and Casitas have conducted many negotiations meetings to develop the contract and resolve outstanding issues with the modification work. Key and central to the modification work were (1) the erosion channel at the toe of the st...
	UProcess:
	If the form and content of the SOD contract is approved by the Board of Directors and the President of the Board is authorized to sign the contract, the General Manager will provide the resolution of the Board and signed contract to Reclamation.  The ...
	UConclusion:
	We have before us a contract that has been negotiated in good faith and is in the best interest of the District and the Bureau.  If there are any questions in regard to the agreement, please do not hesitate to discuss each and every question with me.

	Reso Bureau SOD Agreement 08 13 2014
	SOD Contract
	memo re Drought Regulation Reso and Ordinance
	Casitas Water Waste Ord Draft 08 07 2014
	Reso WSCP
	pr071514
	rs2014_0038_regs
	Memo Adoption of WCVC IRWMP 2014 (1)
	DISCUSSION

	BoardResolution AdoptionWCVC IRWMP
	Copy of Signed NOE - 2014 IRWM Plan Update
	Memo re LCW ER Consortium
	Reso LCW ERC
	Memo re LCW Policies
	LCW Proposal for Casitas MWD_July 2014.docx (3)
	Memo re recruitment firms
	Proposal Water Ops Maintenance Mgr-Aug 2014 (1)
	Water Res Minutes 07 21 2014
	UCASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
	UMINUTES
	FROM:   General Manager, Steve Wickstrum
	URECOMMENDATION:
	It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report.
	UBACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW:

	Rec Minutes 08 04 2014
	UCASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
	UMINUTES
	FROM:   General Manager, Steve Wickstrum
	URECOMMENDATION:
	It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report.
	UBACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW:

	LCRA 06Jun.2014
	Steelhead Summit
	Transition Letter
	Consumption 2014 - 2015
	CFD No. 2013-1 (Ojai) Monthly Costs 2014-2015
	Investment Report 08-07-2014



